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GROUP PROFILE &£E 77

The Group is engaged in Multi-media On-board (‘“MMOB”)
advertising aimed at passengers riding public transit
vehicles in Hong Kong and manages a nationwide

advertising network covering more than 200 cities in the
PRC.

RoadShow was established in 2000 by Transport
International Holdings Limited, Hong Kong's largest public
transport company which holds an interest of about 73% In
RoadShow.
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OUR MISSION
J7t

The Group aims to maintain and enhance its position
as a leading media sales company in the Greater
China region. In order to fulfill this mission, RoadShow
capitalises on a vibrant advertising market that consists
of passengers who use public transit vehicles as well
as pedestrians traversing transit vehicle routes, selling
and marketing its MMOB business advertising spaces
in Hong Kong and offering value added media sales,

products and services at competitive prices.

In addition, the Group selectively pursues profitable
opportunities in the Greater China region and in other
countries to maximise the value of services provided to
our customers and to maintain a stable revenue source

to the Group.

The Group aims to aggressively build, consolidate and
enhance its reputation by ensuring and strengthening
stakeholders’ understanding of, and confidence in, its
long-term strategic plans and developments. At the
same time, we endeavour to improve the quality of our
services to meet the needs and expectations of public
transport operators and users in the Greater China

region.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
e
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=+—BLLFE

Unit &7 2008 2007
| 4
Total operating revenue HKS$ million 184.0 181.4
PN L BEEET
Profit before taxation HKS$ million 56.8 59.4
B 56 A &2 7 BEBETT
Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 42.6 49.6
PR FEAE B 7 A A=R= v
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation HK$ million 1.7 84.2
and amortisation expenses (“EBITDA”) BERETT
HEAME - HIE - TER
#HiHEMAAE ( TEBITDA] )
Basic earnings per share HK cents 4.27 4.98
BRERAT AL
Proposed final dividend per share HK cents 5.00 5.00
ERRESRARHARKRE AL
Proposed special dividend per share HK cents - 3.88
Bk S TR RIRR R AL
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 8421 882.0
MR e AR BEBETT
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The MMOB system, which deploys almost 20,000
LCD monitors in buses, telecasts a wide array of
programmes and advertisements to passengers
daily, reaching an audience of close to 4 million

%L% R RIE B 2R3 20,0001E 7%
FE - BHARRBENRZETREIE B
oiamﬁm;& HBEEAKR -







!

?ﬁé@@@dﬁﬁw:ﬁaﬂny o 3 "

Apart from generating media content to inform,
motivate, entertain and inspire a massive
audience, the Group also provides value-
added services, ranging from producing TV
commercials to creating branded content and
response-driven events.
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As at 31 December 2008, 327,000 iClub
members had participated in our popular daily
quiz games and enjoyed special offers.
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Riding on our strength in reaching the market

{

through the transport mode, we also act as a

media partner in concerts, movies and other

il
M

events.
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Our powerful integrated advertising platform,
combines our proprietary MMOB system, bus

bodies and bus shelters.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERWmE

The Group’s overall performance

in 2008 remained steady, with
RoadShow sustaining satisfactory
results despite the global financial
tsunami that erupted in September.

In Hong Kong, under a new Licence
Agreement with The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”),
the Group was granted an exclusive
licence to conduct media sales agency
business on selected bus stands on
KMB routes. As a result, we were able
to consolidate our revenue source
and further strengthen our competitive
advantage in the out-of-home media
market for the foreseeable future.

RoadShow is now a dominant player
in the franchised bus advertising
market in Hong Kong, with about
4,800 buses equipped with our
MMOB system, reaching a daily
audience of 4 million. This proprietary
system, combined with passenger
shelter advertising spaces and bus
body advertising, provides a powerful
platform for advertisers to reach Hong
Kong consumers with their product
and brand messages.

In Mainland China, the Group will
continue to look for new investment

opportunities and will invest only

in profitable projects with strong
potential to contribute to the Group’s
results.

The Group, which adheres to high
standards of corporate governance,
maintains transparency in the
management and operation of all
aspects of our business. On 8 March
2006, to comply with the Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, we implemented the revised
RoadShow Code on Corporate
Governance.

Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December
2008, the Group reported a total
operating revenue of HK$184.0
million, representing a 1% increase
compared with the previous year. The
profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company was HK$42.6 million for
2008, representing a 14% decrease
compared with HK$49.6 million for
2007. The decrease was mainly
because there was a one-off gain

in 2007 on the deemed disposal of
partial interest in an associate, which
amounted to HK$10.2 million.
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John CHAN Cho Chak BR 2 2

Chairman % f&

RoadShow is now a dominant player in the
franchised bus advertising market in Hong Kong,
with about 4,800 buses equipped with our MMOB
system, reaching a daily audience of 4 million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

FERE @

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final
dividend of HK5.00 cents per share
(2007: final dividend of HK5.00 cents
per share and special dividend of
HK3.88 cents per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Prospects

Starting mid-September 2008,
economic growth in Hong Kong
slowed down considerably as both
external and domestic demand was
severely hit by the global financial
tsunami. Although concern about
the financial meltdown appears to
have receded somewhat, following
a series of unprecedented market
support measures by various
governments and central banks in the
advanced economies, the ongoing
deleveraging process will continue

to be a severe drag on the global
economy. Accordingly, we expect the
Hong Kong and mainland economies
to contract in, and possibly beyond,
2009.

However, thanks to its solid financial
strength, RoadShow is well positioned
to capitalise on opportunities as they
arise to increase its market share.

To sustain our competitive advantage,
we will continue to provide more
value-added sales services to
encourage advertisers to increase
their spending with us, thereby
maintaining our market share. We
will also enhance the contents of our
MMOB programmes for the benefit of
our bus passengers, while continuing
to work closely with advertisers and
advertising agencies to maximise

the impact of their promotional
campaigns.
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Long-term Strategy

The RoadShow Group will strive to
sustain and extend its market share
in Hong Kong notwithstanding the
challenges ahead.

The mainland operation will continue
to be an important element in our
business development strategy, but
within a prudent framework. We will
only expand our media sales business
in the mainland when we are confident
of a reasonable return on investment.
To this end, we will explore investment
opportunities which complement
RoadShow'’s existing portfolio. To
enhance our media assets in the
mainland, we will invest in projects
and/or companies offering us long-
term, exclusive advertising rights that
can benefit the Group.

RoadShow will maintain a stable
dividends policy for our investors and
continue to adhere to the principles
of good corporate governance and
transparency.

Appreciation

We know that RoadShow’s success
depends on our experienced
professionals. On behalf of the Board,
| would like to thank all our staff

for their dedication and invaluable
contribution to the business during
the year. We are confident about their
continued support to the company.

My special thanks to the Audit
Committee, chaired by Dr Eric Li
Ka Cheung and with Mr Yung Wing
Chung, Ms Winnie Ng, Dr Carlye
Wai-Ling Tsui and Mr Hui Ki On as
members, for their commendable
work during the year.

| also sincerely appreciate the
contributions of my fellow directors,
in particular the Managing Director,
Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, to the Group’s
commendable performance during
the year.

John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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The year under review was characterised by some
economic uncertainty in the first half of the year
and the global financial crisis in the second half, all
of which tested the Group’s resilience. The results
indicate our ability to achieve growth despite the
tough climate.

BIEAAREE - EFFa)— LB TRAREEE MEFHEE
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Alex MO Tik Sang % # 4

Managing Director EFALEE




MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

SERRKIERE

As the Chairman has noted, the key
asset that has enabled RoadShow

to become a dominant player in the
franchised bus advertising market is
our powerful integrated advertising
platform, combining our proprietary
MMOB system, bus bodies and bus
shelters. In our strategic review a year
ago, we identified the need to enhance
our core business by upgrading our
platform. | am happy to report that
we have made considerable progress
not only in meeting this objective but
also on re-engineering our business
by investing in talent, upgrading
equipment and displays, enhancing
content and strengthening our sales
and marketing efforts.

We achieved all this while increasing
our profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by
HK$3.2 million to HK$42.6 million

at the year end, representing an 8%
increase over the previous year (apart
from the one-off profit realised from
the deemed disposal of an associate

last year). This gives the Group

a strong platform to capitalise on
future opportunities, while facing the
challenges ahead.

On 30 January 2009, we gained a
9-month licence to solicit advertising
business for KMB bus interiors.

This enables the Group to diversify
revenue sources and pave the way
to developing a comprehensive
media portfolio in the franchised bus
segment.

During the year, AdSociety Daye
Advertising Company Limited (“Daye”),
the Group’s joint venture with the
People’s Daily, sustained growth for
the sixth consecutive year, further
strengthening its status as a unique
content provider for TV Stations in
Mainland China. Daye is diversifying
its content to include game shows,
enabling it to maintain competitiveness
while sustaining profitability amid the
tough economic conditions in the
mainland.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT (ontinued)

B S AKERE @

Upgrading MMOB

In a competitive and fast-moving
business environment, RoadShow

is aware of the need to enhance
products and services in response to
our clients’ changing needs.

In 2008, we continued to enhance

our medium with attractive, diversified
content to stimulate and maintain the
interest of passengers and advertisers.
Towards the end of the year, we began
installing new TV monitors in buses to
improve display quality and the overall
impact of the medium. This paves the
way to further develop our broadcast
technology in the future.

Looking Forward

As a dominant player in the franchised
bus advertising market, RoadShow
will seek other opportunities in Hong
Kong, focusing in particular on media
which have synergy with our existing
platform in the transport sector. This
will enable us to leverage our expertise
to expand operations in line with the
Group’s corporate strategy.

Mainland China will be RoadShow’s
major growth area in the future.
Through our first CEPA subsidiary

in Beijing, we aim to expand
RoadShow’s media sales business in
the mainland and heighten awareness
of our brand across the region. We
are also looking at different strategies
that could give us an advantage in the
intensely competitive PRC advertising
and media sales markets.

Our progress over the year is due to
the guidance we have received from
the Board and the professionalism
and dedication of our staff. | would like
to place on record my appreciation of
everyone who contributed to another
successful year for RoadShow.

With a solid balance sheet and a clear
roadmap, we are well positioned to
grow the business in the long term.

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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RoadShow Holdings Limited

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

E S IEI A

MMOB Business

The Group’s MMOB business involves:
installing, operating and maintaining
equipment and LCD units in buses to
disseminate tailor-made programmes
and advertisements; producing and
sourcing programme content; and
marketing and selling advertising via
our MMOB system.

The MMOB system, which deploys
almost 20,000 LCD monitors in buses,
telecasts a wide array of programmes
and advertisements to passengers
daily. At present, approximately 4,800
buses of Kowloon Motor Bus, Citybus,
New World First Bus and public light
buses carry our units, reaching an
audience of close to 4 million every
day.

During 2008, we began upgrading our
LCD units on buses to enhance our
system, which is clearly an attractive
medium for advertisers because of

its ability to reach such a large daily

audience.

Annual Report 2008

Media Sales and Services

While providing a high coverage
through MMOB, we offer media sales
and marketing services to all major
advertisers and advertising agencies in
Hong Kong.

In addition to offering tailor-made
sales packages to suit advertisers
with different campaign objectives
and budgets, the Group provides
value-added services ranging from
production of TV commercials

to creating branded content and
response-driven events.

These efforts are in line with our
commitment to meet and exceed
customer expectations, thus
increasing customer loyalty and
spending by advertisers/agencies
convinced by our medium’s powerful
ability to garner desired audience
response.
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OPERA—HONAL RE\/' E\/\/ (continued)
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Unique Programming

We carefully tailor MMOB content
programming to sustain the interest
of bus passengers. Our content
covers four streams: culture, lifestyle,
entertainment and news. The uniquely
creative, informative and entertaining
content has gained the sustained
interest of our audience.

RoadShow introduced a number of
special programmes, including the
following:

e To educate our audience on current
affairs, we launched “RoadShow
Forum”, a programme focusing
on Hong Kong people’s livelihood,
current affairs and community
issues. Each issue is discussed by
two prominent guests representing
different views.

¢ To enrich Hong Kong’s arts and
culture in anticipation of the opening
of the West Kowloon Cultural
District, we produced “RoadShow
Stage” and “Dramatic Criticism” — a
stimulating series offering insights
into arts and culture which also aims
to make people interested in this
sphere of life.

e To educate our audience about the
serious effects of global warming
on our hometown, we worked
with the Hong Kong Observatory
to produce a series of special
programmes, “Relief 16 Degrees”.
This programme aims to change
the behaviour of Hong Kong people

and motivate them to become
active protectors of our home
environment.

At the same time, RoadShow
continued to support and participate
in various charity and community
activities, including the following:

e To encourage participation in, and
support for, charity, RoadShow
aired appeals from a number of
organisations during the year,
including Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions,
Youth Hostel Fund Raising, Hong
Kong Yogathon 2009, and many
others.

Riding on the burgeoning popularity of
SMS services, RoadShow launched
iClub in 2008, to offer a highly
effective interactive platform for both
advertisers and passengers. As at

31 December 2008, 327,000 iClub
members had participated in our
popular daily quiz games and enjoyed
special offers.

The Group will continue to enrich

and diversify programme content by
increasing in-house production as well
as collaborating with more regional
and local content providers. We will
also increase the ratio of branded
content and act as a media partner in
concerts, movies and other events.
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O PERAT' O NAL R E\/l E\/\/ (continued)
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Mainland China

Although the mainland economy
slowed down considerably in

the fourth quarter of 2008 and is
expected to dampen even further

in 2009, we aim to capitalise on the
opportunity amid the turmoil, while
taking advantage of the Government’s
economic stimulus packages.

The 2010 World Expo in Shanghai and
the 2010 Asian Games in Guangzhou
are expected to offer a boost to the
advertising and media sales business
there, which we also aim to take
advantage of.

With the completion of the
subscription agreement with ARVATO
SERVICES MUNCHEN GMBH
(formerly known as Cross Marketing
Arvato Services GMBH) (“Arvato”),
the Group’s joint venture in the
mainland has evolved into a content
provider combining the strength

of both international and mainland
media groups. This is bound to further
enhance the quality and scope of
content we will produce to meet
market demand.

Good corporate citizenship

For six consecutive years, RoadShow
has received the Caring Company
Award from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service. The Group
supports many charities and non-
profit organisations through the
dissemination of community service
messages and charity appeals via
MMOB. We also participate in various
charity and fund-raising events and
encourage our staff to participate in
the Dress Special Day organised by
the Community Chest. The Group will
continue to support civic education by
producing informative and educational
programmes for bus passengers.

People

The ability of our people to understand
and deliver customer needs gives

us a major advantage. It is crucial to
develop and retain the people because
it will enable us to retain our leading
position. During the year, we recruited
new talent and provided training to
enhance the quality and efficiency

of our people. We will continue to
enhance a nurturing culture and,
together, we will face new challenges
with confidence.
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The Group generates its operating revenue from the following geographical locations:
REBBHKEWRARE AT R :

2008 2007
Group Share of Total Group Share of Total
associate associate
AEE i #st REE i HEt
NG| /NG
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BETT BT BT BT
Segment revenue ith & & %5
Hong Kong &% 141,592 - 141,592 129,976 - 129,976
Mainland China = B ARE 6,820 - 6,820 4,292 - 4,292
Total 45t 148,412 - 148,412 134,268 - 134,268
Segment results &£
Hong Kong &% 22,959 - 22,959 8,484 - 8,484
Mainland China /[ X FE 548 14,141 14,689 (723) 12,538 11,815
Total 425t 23,507 14,141 37,648 7,761 12,538 20,299
Unallocated operating 19,436 30,564
income and expenses
RFHILEWA T E A
Finance costs 1% & A (300) (1,706)
Gain on deemed disposal of - 10,243
partial interest in associate
RIEHEBE QRS
T 2 W
Income tax Fr5#i (7,062) (2,008)
Profit for the year <4 E & Fl| 49,722 57,397
Attributable to: FE{5WT :
Equity shareholders of
the Company 72 &% R 42,615 49,620
Minority interests > #id B iz 7,107 7,777
Profit for the year A4 & F 49,722 57,397




Results

For the year ended 31 December
2008, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$184.0
million, representing an increase

of 1% over the previous year. The
profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company was HK$42.6 million
in 2008, representing a decrease

of 14% compared with HK$49.6
million in 2007. Profit attributable to
shareholders decreased as last year
included a gain on deemed disposal
of partial interest in associate of
HK$10.2 million. The profit derived
from its Hong Kong operations and
Mainland China operations amounted
to HK$25.0 million (2007: HK$25.6
million) and HK$17.6 million (2007:
HK$24.0 million) respectively. The
Group continues to maintain a strong
financial position with bank deposits
and cash balances of HK$533.9
million as at 31 December 2008
(2007: HK$606.0 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December
2008, the Group reported a total
operating revenue of HK$184.0
million of which HK$148.4 million was
from the media sales services and
management business and HK$35.6
million was from other revenue and
other net income. Revenue from
media sales services and management
business generated from our Hong
Kong and Mainland China operations

accounted for approximately

77% and 4% of the Group’s total
operating revenue respectively.
Revenue generated from media sales
services and management business
of our Hong Kong operations was
HK$141.6 million in 2008 compared
with HK$130.0 million in 2007, while
that generated from our Mainland
China operations was HK$6.8 million
compared with HK$4.3 million in
2007. The Hong Kong media sales
revenue increased by HK$11.6 million
(9%) compared with last year while
that from Mainland China increased by
HK$2.5 million (59%).

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses
decreased slightly by HK$2.0

million from HK$143.0 million to
HK$141.0 million. Royalty, licence
and management fees and also staff
expenditure was increased by HK$8.4
million and HK$6.3 million respectively
compared with 2007 while the
increase offset by a reduction in
depreciation and amortisation,
impairment loss of fixed assets and
other operating expenses of HK$8.5
million, HK$3.0 million and HK$5.0
million respectively.

BRABERAERIE —Z2ENFFER

B
HE-_ZZEN\F+_A=+—HILHF

B AEESHESELERARESE
184,000,0007T * MEAFIEIMN1% © A&
RAIRER =TT )\F 2 RIEBF AE
#42,600,0007C * B-_TTLFHEE
49,600,0007T8 2 14% ° BRI FEAE & F
B TEREFRIERIEL EHE AR
K BP0 #E 25 U IR &5 8 %5 10,200,000 ©
REBBRPBEAREEBOETSD R A
#125,000,0007T (=TT 4 BK
25,600,00070) KA&#17,600,0007T
(ZZZTH4F : #%24,000,0007T) ° A&
EEBBEEFBROVBMR - RZTT
NE+ZA=T—BORITERERSLE
# BB %533,900,0007T (ZZTZTLF :
7##606,000,0007T) °

KEWA
HE-_ZT)\E+-_A=+—HILF
& REBSFEERA BB
184,000,0007T * & 7 #5148,400,0007C
TIREBEBHEEBRERER - A
#35,600,000 T BIZR B H A A R E
fh SRR o BB RP R AREELEER
FITEE A RO BE 6 65 5 R IR TR
DREEAREBGEERABEZTT% R
4% - AEBMR ST N\FEHNEBELH
EEBREBEBMELZRARBE
141,600,0007T - L —ZZT+FRIA
##130,000,0007T © MASEBE R AF EH
ARER A B A7 %6,800,0007T + ¥
=T+ FA| £ 4,300,0007T °
BB EEBHEERARKFEINEE
11,600,0007T (9%) - A HBIARE
FOUR A B 2 4F 38 N4 152,500,000
(59%) -

reEBH

REBE R B A BB 143,000,0007T
R A ¥ 2,000,000 T BB
141,000,0007T - EFE - BT BERERE
. UREBIRABR-ZTLFEHH)EM
758,400,000t & %#6,300,0007T -
Mz EEMAATE RSN  BTEE
BEBEREMEEERAD B EE
8,500,000 * 7#&%3,000,0007T k&
5,000,000 T84 -
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Dividends

The Directors recommend a final
dividend of HK5.00 cents per share
(2007: final dividend of HK5.00 cents
per share and special dividend of
HK3.88 cents per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2008. This
represents a pay-out ratio of 117% of
the current year’s profit.

Cash Flow

In 2008, the cash used in the
operations of the Group was HK$1.9
million (2007: generated from
operations HK$63.5 million). Payment
for capital expenditure in 2008
amounted to HK$0.4 million (2007:
HK$0.1 million). The consolidated
cash flow statement of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2008
is set out on pages 72 to 73 of this
Annual Report.

Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Bank deposits and cash balances as
at 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$533.9 million (2007: HK$644.0
million).

At 31 December 2008, the Group

did not have any bank borrowings
(2007: secured bank loan of HK$38.0
million). The gearing ratio, representing
the ratio of bank borrowings to the
total share capital and reserves of the
Group was 0% at 31 December 2008
(81 December 2007: 4.3%).

At 31 December 2008, the Group

had net current assets of HK$552.2
million (2007: HK$583.8 million) and
total assets of HK$894.7 million (2007:
HK$994.7 million).

The Group’s cash needs are primarily
for working capital and to support

its media sales business. At 31
December 2008, the Group had
banking facilities totalling HK$50.0
million (2007: HK$50.0 million). The
Group is confident that sufficient funds
are maintained to meet the funding
requirements for potential business
expansion and development in the
near future.

3=\

EEREREE_TTNF+_A=1+—
HIEFEIRERBREZRBERES.001L
(ZZTLF - RERESRAES.0010
FAERI S S E3.881L) - REEA
REAFERTEINIT%

ZETEN\FR - AEBERREEE
IR AE% 1,900,000 (=ZF
TLF RAKEFHNCEABE
63,500,0007T) ° ZEEN\FMEARH
X AAB#400,000C (ZZTTLF BB
100,0007T) > AEBEBE-ZTTNF+
A=t BULEEENRARESRERH
RARERFT2EFEET3E »

RBESRHBEER

RZZEENEFE+-A=+—8 " RITEXK
NIR &  AE 533,900,000 (=%
T4 : B#644,000,0007T) ©

RZZENF+ZA=+—R0 ' £5£ET
E|AEMRITER (ZZZLF : BEKFR
TEFHBHES8,000,000T) - R-EE
)\¢+*H_+fa BEREBERE (B
BITEFEREEREARFESAEN
ttz) B0% (ZET+F+-_A=1+—
H:4.3%) o

RZZENF+ZA=+—0 ' £&£EH
mENEEFEAB552,200,000T (=
TT A4 ¢ B¥583,800,0000T) 0 ME
EH(EAB%894,700,000T (ZZEZ+
£ 1 B1994,700,0007T) ©

AEENESTETZEAEREES L
RIBEEBHEER - RZTTN\EF+ =
A=+—8" ZK%IE%EM;E%E:.A%
7#150,000,0007 (ZEF DA
50,000,0007T) ° ZK%?}TH%E{%%}E
WE S AR A REEEBER R
BHNESTE -



Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2008, the Group
did not have any charge on its assets,
while at 31 December 2007, bank
deposits of HK$38.0 million were
pledged to secure the Group’s bank
loan.

Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans
and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
US Dollars and Renminbi. During the
year, there was no material fluctuation
in the exchange rates of the Hong
Kong Dollar and US Dollar. The
appreciation in the current value of the
Renminbi contributed positively to the
Group’s bottom line. The Group did
not engage in any derivatives activities
and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its balance sheet
exposure in 2008. At 31 December
2008, the proceeds from the Global
Offering and the exercise of an over-
allotment option by the underwriters
on 18 July 2001, which had not

been utilised, were placed into bank
deposits.

Capital Expenditures and
Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the
Group during 2008 amounted to
HK$0.4 million (2007: HK$0.1 million).
The breakdown of capital expenditures

incurred is shown in notes 13 and 14
to the financial statements on pages
103 to 104 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding
and not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group as at

31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$173.0 million (2007: HK$173.0
million), which is mainly for the
upgrade of the existing MMOB
system for the MMOB business. The
commitments are to be financed
by bank borrowings and/or internal
resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group
had no material contingent liabilities.

Accounting Standards and
Policies

The financial statements set out on
pages 66 to 133 have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the

Listing Rules, all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

—ZENFEER

BERA

RZZZENF+A=+—H  r5EHL
EEMEEMEE  MR-BRLF+=
A=+—B8IF%5%38,000,0007TH R
TR FBIR ARG AR ERRITER o

B =K% B /= B I AR A O

AEENEREE  EXRRSZEIENE
¥ ERAREREMN - FR - BER
ETMEXRYRERNRE - AREBEL
TAREENYSTEREBER - R -F
ZNF  ARBEYEETERAITETRSE
B TEETEMNERTASTEEES
EXRRER  R_ZET-—FEtA+/\RBE
E2REENBHEBITERBRICRER SR
BAMMERER-_ZENFT A=+
—HEFERITER

BERMAXREFRERE

AEER-_ZTENFANELARZ A
400,000 (ZETLF - B
100,0007T) ° BEARMZBBAME LR
KERFE103BEF104H B B HRERM
F13K%14
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Employees and Remuneration
Policies

At 31 December 2008, the Group
had 59 full-time employees in Hong
Kong and 19 full-time employees

in Mainland China. The Group has
adopted a share option scheme,
details of which are contained in the
paragraph headed “Share option
scheme” as described on pages 59
to 60 of this Annual Report.

Connected Transactions

For the year ended 31 December
2008, the Group entered into the
following continuing connected
transactions, details of which are set
out below:

EERFMBCR

RZZBZENF+TZA=+—80 £5H
REEESILEBES - RPEXER
B1922BER - AEEEHRA—HBE
IRHEST B - FEHRNAFRESIAES
60E [MEACIERTE] —B -

BERS
AEEREHEE-_ZTN\F+=A=1+—
ALEFEMETHHEREIZINFEE
LUl

£

(i) Name of connected parties Nature of transaction HK$’000 Cap amount
BEALTETE XHHE BT T approved by
the independent
shareholders
1B S IR LR
LR
HK$’000
BT
(1) | The Kowloon Motor Bus Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited 10,577 11,500
Company (1933) Limited (“Bus Focus”) Mot 2 to KMB in connection
eyl with the provision of media sales services for
hER+ (—h== transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
ER QG M) fiBus Focus Limited ( [Bus Focus ] ) 2
RANBHEENEESHEETREFEBHERS
RABXHNOEHE
(2) | JCDecaux Texon Limited Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 14,144 15,500
(Note 3) (2 3) JCDecaux Texon in connection with the
provision of media sales services for transit
vehicle shelters owned by KMB
FMBus Focust A NEH AR BB HRE 24t
HEE S E RIS [MJCDecaux TexonX MHE BB
(3) | JCDecaux Texon Limited Shortfall of guarantee advertising income 9,785 23,400
(Note 3) ( K& 3) receivable by Bus Focus in connection with
the provision of media sales services for
transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focus N EHE N R IEERIZE T4
HERBHEBREESWAT R
Notes: BitsE -

1. The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB?”) is an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of TIH.

2. Bus Focus Limited (“Bus Focus”) is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company
and a direct 40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL”). IPL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of JCDecaux Texon International Limited (“JCDecaux TIL").

3. JCDecaux Texon Limited (“JCDecaux Texon”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux

TIL.

1. WEEBTL (—AZ=Z) ARRAA ( [hEB] ) REBEZEE

b ZRol) - PN

2. Bus Focus Limited ( [Bus Focus] ) @A RAIREHE
60% s HIH B A A] - I A2 Immense Prestige Limited
([IPL] ) B#EHEHI0% Rz AIEZ R A] © IPLZJCDecaux
Texon International Limited ( [JCDecaux TIL] ) 2 &#HHH)
HiERA] -

3. JCDecaux Texon Limited ( [JCDecaux Texon] ) &
JCDecaux TILZ B HHHIHTE 22 7]




The Group entered into the above
transactions with the connected
parties in 2008. The transactions
constitute continuing connected
transactions which are subject

to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules. The details of the
above transactions were disclosed in
the Circular of the Company dated 28
November 2008 and were approved
at the special general meeting (“SGM”)
by the independent shareholders on
15 December 2008.

—ZENFEER

AEER T N\FHEBABEALIZ bt
25 RBELTHRAUEI4AE - LR 5
BRBERERS - WRETHRE  2f
KB R EIRTE - Bl R B HFHE
ERARB _ZEZNF+-A=Z+/N\BH
REARE YR -_ZETNF+-_A+H
B R RIR & DB AR A -

'(ii) Name of connected parties Nature of transaction HK$’000 Cap amount
BEALETE ZHHE #¥Fx | approved by
the independent
shareholders
KB R BLE R
SR LR
HK$’000
BT T
(4) | The Kowloon Motor Bus Licence fee and service charges payable 20,924 34,000
Company (1933) Limited by RoadShow Media Limited (“RoadShow
(et ) Media”) Mot 9 to KMB in connection with the
hEEL (—HA==) granting of an exclusive licence to conduct
o ONCIRGERY MMOB Advertising on KMB’s transit vehicles
fitted with the MMOB broadcasting system
RoadShow Media Limited ( [RoadShow
Medial ) #=9 BENEBREFEENEEER
PEBRBRRERGNEL LETRBZEBESN
NEEXNNSTFERREE
(5) | KMB Public Bus Services Service fee payable by KMBPBS to 15,619 20,000
Holdings Limited RoadShow Media in connection with the
() @itz provision of media sales management and
administrative services by RoadShow Media
in relation to advertising spaces located at
the exterior panels of KMB’s transit vehicles
EHKMBPBS#tRoadShow Media A N B R BHEH
B+ ESINERA A EE IR KRS HE BB R AT
AR 75 1 fE 32 f+f FRoadShow Media® iR 7% &

Note:

4. KMB Public Bus Services Holdings Limited (“KMBPBS”) is an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of TIH.

5. RoadShow Media Limited (“RoadShow Media”) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company.

Wit -

4. KMB Public Bus Services Holdings Limited

( [KMBPBS] ) Z#BRZZEHHNHIBAA -

5. RoadShow Media Limited ( [RoadShow Medial ) &7 2%

AR R AR BN E R -

33



'

34 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Fl NAN C'AL R E\/l EV\/ (continued)

TS EEE ()

The Group entered into the above
transactions with the connected
parties in 2007. The transactions
constitute continuing connected
transactions which are subject

to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The details of the
above transactions were disclosed in
the Circular of the Company dated 21
November 2007 and were approved
at the SGM by the independent
shareholders on 10 December 2007.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
have reviewed and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions as
set out in (i) and (ii) above, which were
entered into by the Group, are:

¢ in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

® on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

® in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

In addition, the External Auditor of the
Company confirmed that in respect of
the continuing connected transactions
as set out in (i) and (i) above:

¢ the continuing connected

transactions were approved by the
Board;

¢ there were agreements in place

governing the continuing connected
transactions and the prices charged
for all of the transactions were in
accordance with the pricing terms
set out in the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

the aggregate dollar amount of the
continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December
2008 did not exceed the respective
caps disclosed in previous
announcements made by the
Company in respect of each of the
continuing connected transactions.

REBR ST FRBFEALI Y Lt
X5 BELWHRAE14ATE - L5
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Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on
the Stock Exchange, the Group has
utilised approximately HK$350.9
million for the development of, and
the purchase of equipment for use
in, the MMOB business and for

the acquisition of complementary
businesses in Mainland China. The
balance of the proceeds, which has
not been utilised, has been deposited
with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed
strong emphasis on maintaining high
standards of corporate governance
and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and

sound framework to assist the
Directors in fulfilling their duties and
responsibilities to the Group. The
Group’s standards of corporate
governance ensure that the Group’s
corporate decision-making process,
internal controls, disclosure of
information and communication
with shareholders is conducted in
accordance with sound management
practices and in full compliance
with the regulatory standards. The
Corporate Governance Report of
the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 is set out on pages
43 to 54 of this Annual Report.

BABERAERAIE —ZENFFER
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Directors &%

John CHAN Cho Chak cChairman

RABARFML 25
GBS, JR, DBA (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

|4

Aged 65. Mr Chan has been the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is a Non-
executive Director of Transport International Holdings

{ L Limited (“TIH"). He served as Managing Director of
{ . TIH, and also served as Senior Executive Director
-"':ﬂp and Managing Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus
) 8 Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus
‘ ‘ Company Limited. He is also an Independent Non-
1R Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and
Guangdong Investment Limited. Before joining the
Group, Mr Chan held many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to
1978 and from 1980 to 1993. The key posts held in the Hong Kong Government
included Private Secretary to the Governor, Deputy Secretary (General Duties),
Director of Information Services, Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and
Industry and Secretary for Education and Manpower. Mr Chan also served as
Executive Director and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited
from 1978 to 1980. Mr Chan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club and
Vice Patron of the Community Chest.

ATAEK - RE4B8=-TT—F—A+HA
ERARBIRE - R EFBRRZEREAR
»E) (&R ) FRTEE - EESR
BESRR UBEAEEL (—h==2)
BRAR (ThE]) REEELAR
RAERATEEREER - RELETR
EBERTARAANRESRERRRAREL
FEHITES - RMAKEA - RAEER
—AARAFE-NAENFR-NANZFE
—NAN=FERERREERN - HEEE
BEILAME - BIFHA - BUTHERELE
& BIfHA  TEARBERANIRER
E2B - REER-NENFE-NNTF
REERMNEEMBEERIRARITEER
BEE - REETRBEERSSLIERER

RESHBRER -

YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman
BKE 5+

|4

Aged 62. Mr Yung has been a Director of the
Company since 20 November 2008. He is a Corporate
Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also
serves as a Non-Executive Director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Director of YATA
Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited,
River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance
Company Limited and Airport Freight Forwarding
Centre Company Limited, and as an Alternate Director

of Transport International Holdings Limited. Prior to
his joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung had many years of
working experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial positions in Hong Kong
and the United States.

ANt RELEE_ZEN\EFE+—A=+
HESARREE - bR EEMERES
RAFKATER - I EEHBTREASE
EERAFNIFNTES —HERARA -

EREAMZEFRLARAF - River Trade

Terminal Co. Ltd.  JEEM B R A7) R
SBEBROERATNES - TAHBERE
ERERARIZARITES - R—ANREM
AFBEMEZEBRAFN - AEEER
—XERTIEZF  BARTREBRSE
RS IHETR -




Winnie NG  Founder and Deputy Chairman

BB 2HAREEE
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard)

BRABERERLIE —ZEENFER

4

Aged 45. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and
has been a Director since its inception. She is also a
Director of Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited,

and Long Win Bus Company Limited. Ms Ng won the
Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award

in 2003, was named one of China’s One Hundred
Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs and a Mason Fellow
of Harvard University in 2006, and was the Caring Heart
Award recipient in 2009. She spearheaded listing of
the Company, which business model has been adopted by many companies in HK,

China and over the world.

Active in public service, she is Director of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre;
Director of HK Cyberport; Council Member of Better HK Foundation; Executive
Committee Member of HK Council of Social Service; Director of Agency for
Volunteer Service; PR Committee Member of Community Chest; Hospital Governing
Committee Member of Queen Elizabeth Hospital, and Advisory Board Member of
Habitat for Humanity China. Ms Ng is also Vice Chairman of Council of China’s
Foreign Trade, China Council for Promotion of International Trade and Vice Board
Chairman of Council of World Market, Shanghai Foreign Economic Relation & Trade
Commission.

Ms Ng is sister of Mr Anthony Ng, Director of the Company and also an alternate
director to Mr Anthony Ng. Ms Ng holds an MBA degree from the University of
Chicago and an MPA degree from Harvard University.
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Alex MO Tik Sang  Managing Director
EME #Fegr

4

Aged 43. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company
since 15 April 2008. With more than twenty years of
extensive experience in advertising, marketing and the
media field, Mr Mo possesses integrated experience
in multiple disciplines of the communications industry
having held management responsibilities in the past
twelve years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo held

a senior position in a leading media group for Greater
China.
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Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

ERFBEIATHL sursies
GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS

Independent Non-Executive Director

4
Aged 55. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since
16 September 2004. He is the Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor

Bus Company (1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company
Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank

- A

Limited. He is an independent non-executive director of Sun Hung Kai Properties

Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited, Bank
of Communications Co., Ltd. and Meadville Holdings

Limited. Dr Li was an Independent Non-executive Director of CATIC International
Holdings Limited and Sinofert Holdings Limited, and a Non-executive Director of
Strategic Global Investment plc. Dr Li is a member of the 11th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its Public Accounts
Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

HBRERELIARTHLE sunres
BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Independent Non-Executive Director

|4

Aged 61. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company
since 1 April 2001. She is the Chief Executive Officer of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow
of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and The British Computer
Society, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Association
for Computer Education and Chartered Information
Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is the holder of
Professional Diploma on Corporate Governance and
Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a
Member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) and Deputy Chairman
of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. She was formerly a Wan
Chai District Councillor, a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional Urban Council
and a member of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding Chairman of Hong

Kong Chinese Orchestra. She is also Independent Non-Executive Director of AXA
Financial Services Trustees Limited and FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings
Limited (1175). She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in
Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of the Year 1992, Member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997, Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the
Ken Goulding Award for the most outstanding professional doctorate of Middlesex
University 2007.

AT— R -HRETE_TT-—FOA—HE
REARAES - MRBBEFBFNITRE
HoMNEXEREE BB TIEMEE -
EEEFReREEHREENEREER
EREMBE2ENRER T RFFEAR
REEAL -HFELHE [DXEARES
BEXER] - HREBLHEAKTHL  BBL
FEEGKE BEOBMEIMEREGRA
AEEFE wEEEFRERE  AITRB
LESBTHEHE BEEBEERKE -
WIRERBEBTLEEEERE - wARKEE
BERIRBETAERARRBLR MRS
ERAR AR (1175) B IFAITES -
WR—NN\—FEEABEE+REHTFLZ
— W — AN Z FRERE BB R
g R-NANEFERRTREEHE - R
—RE-FRERAKNES - U
HRBREE T LFRAELEERER
T




HUI Ki On
FHR BuniTEE
GBS, CBE, QPM, CPM

Independent Non-Executive Director

—EEN\EER

4

Aged 65. Mr Hui has been a Director of the Company
since 1 April 2001. He was previously Commissioner
of Police in Hong Kong from 1994 to January 2001.
Mr Hui has served with the Police Force since 1963.
During his police career, Mr Hui had been awarded the
Baton of Honor, the Commissioner’s Commendation,
the Colonial Police Medal for Meritorious Service, the
Queen’s Police Medal, the Colonial and HKSAR Police
Long Service Medals and the CBE. In 2001, he was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Gold Star Medal by the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government. He was the Acting Managing
Director of K. Wah International Holdings Limited. Mr Hui is a member of the Scout
Association of Hong Kong and is an Honorary Commissioner.
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Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

RICRHERAFML gz
JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

4

Aged 49. Professor Cheung has been a Director of

the Company since 19 January 2009. He has been
appointed as Dean of the School of Business and a
Professor (Chair) of Finance, at the Hong Kong Baptist
University with effect from 23 March 2009. He obtained
a BSc from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD in
Statistics from Universite de Paris VI, and PhD in Finance
from the University of Strathclyde.

Professor Cheung has extensive consultancy experience
in the Hong Kong financial sector. He has served as a project coordinator for the
Consumer Council in its examination of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was
Chairman of Core Group on Corporate Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation
Council and was responsible for drafting the PECC’s guidelines on good corporate
governance practice for Asia-Pacific economies. He has provided consultancy
services to the Asian Development Bank, United Nations ESCAP, Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd. He was also a part-time member of advisory
board of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of Enhancing Self-Reliance Through District
Partnership Programme of the Home Affairs Department. He is a member of the
Public Shareholders Group of the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting Council. He serves on the

Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC),

Commission on Strategic Development, the Statistics Advisory Committee and Urban
Renewal Strategy Committee. He was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by
the HKSAR Government.
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John Anthony MILLER Director
HER 7
SBS, OBE , MPA (Harvard), BA (London)

4

Aged 58. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company
since 20 March 2008. Mr Miller retired from the Civil
Service in February 2007 as Permanent Representative
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
China to the World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key
positions held over a career spanning 35 years prior to
Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director
of Housing and Chief Executive of the Housing Authority
1996-2002, Director-General of Trade 1993-1996,
Director of Marine 1991-1993, Information Coordinator in the Chief Secretary’s Office
1989-1991 and Private Secretary to the Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller is a non-
executive director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited and Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a
partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller holds an MPA
degree from Harvard University and a BA degree from London University.
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Edmond HO Tat Man Director
MEX =%
MA(Cantab), MBA, CMILT, MHKIoD

4

Aged 47. Mr Ho has been a Director of the Company
since 13 October 2008. Mr Ho has been a Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) and

of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited
(“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited (“LWB”),
both wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH, since 1 January
2001. Mr Ho joined KMB in September 1998 and
served as Finance and Administration Director from

January 1999 to April 2003. He was promoted to
Deputy Managing Director of TIH, KMB and LWB with
effect from 10 January 2002. He has been appointed Managing Director of KMB
and LWB since 1 January 2007 and Managing Director of TIH with effect from 8 April
2008. Positions previously held by him included Investment Director of a merchant
bank and executive director of a number of transport infrastructure management
and investment companies in Hong Kong and on the Mainland of China. Mr Ho

was formerly also a director of four Sino-foreign joint venture companies of an
international leading soft drink brand. Mr Ho holds a Master’s degree in engineering
from Cambridge University and an MBA degree from The University of Hong Kong.
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MAK Chun Keung Director
HIRE 77

BRABERAERIE —Z2ENFFER

4

Aged 68. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company
since 23 May 2001. He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) in 1994, appointed
Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006.
He was Director of HK Macau Limited, a subsidiary of KMB
providing urban bus services in co-operation with Dalian
City No. 1 Bus Company through Dalian HK Macau Motor

Bus Services Limited, and Director of the co-operative joint
venture in Dalian, People’s Republic of China. Mr Mak has
over 20 years of experience in international banking and finance, and has held senior
executive positions in foreign and local banking institutions throughout his career.
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Anthony NG  Director

BXKE 5
BA, MBA (lvey)

4

Aged 41. Mr Ng has been a Director of the Company
since 1 April 2001. He is a director of Harvest City Ltd (a
company investing in public bus operations in Shenyang,
Jilin and Dalian) and NetThruPut Inc (a Canadian leading
company in webbased crude oil trading and an affiliate
company of Enbridge Inc). Mr Ng is a member of Council
to the Board of Sowers Action, a charity organisation
which aims at developing fundamental education in China.
Mr Ng is the brother of Ms Winnie Ng, Deputy Chairman of
the Company. Mr Ng holds an MBA degree from the Richard Ivey School of Business
of the University of Western Ontario.
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Name Position held in the Group Date of appointment
e RAREBEEERBA ZEBH

| 4

John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman 15 January 2001
BRAEE AR T A+ & —TE—F—A+HH
GBS, JP

Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
hEE BlEE —TT—5—A+HH
Anthony NG Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001

hKE EBMITES —EE-FMA—AR
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001

BRRTRE LT REaL B IEMITES —EE-FMA—H
BBS, MBE, JP

HUI Ki On Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001

ERLES BYEHITES —ET-FWA—H

GBS, CBE, QPM, CPM

MAK Chun Keung

Non-Executive Director

23 May 2001

E-3iE EMITESE —TT-FRA=-+=H
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung Independent Non-Executive Director 16 September 2004
FREBLARATHLT BYIEHITES ZZEZENFENATRAE
GBS, OBE, JP

John Anthony MILLER

Non-Executive Director

20 March 2008

B8 FHITES —ETNF=RA=1H
SBS, OBE

Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director 15 April 2008

@t ERprE —ZEENENA+HEHE
Edmond HO Tat Man Non-Executive Director 13 October 2008
(CIf=3¢ FHMITESR —EENETA+TZ=H
YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
KA BlXE —ZEENF+—-RA=T+H

Professor CHEUNG Yan Leung

RERBEARF#L
JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIYENITES

19 January 2009
—2EAF-A+AA

SENIOR MANAGEMENT S EEAE

Name Position held in the Group Year joined the Group
#HH R KB EER B MAREEZ F1H
4

Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008
FE4 EEAKE —ETN\FHA
Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Programme Officer September 2008
& 3 2% # B R BB —ZEZENFAA
Jo MAN Miu Sheung Finance & Administration Director and Company Secretary February 2007
X1 M RITRAERAFWE —ZEZAHFR
Ramond YIU Wing Hong Marketing & Sales Director (HK & Greater China) October 2000
2ok BR R E R B (KPP EME) —ZEZZFTA
Ada LO Ching Operations & Planning Director October 2000
EE EERKEEE —ZETZFTA




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance
Practices

The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) have placed strong emphasis
on maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and believe that
good corporate governance provides
a solid and sound framework to assist
the Board in fulfilling its duties and
responsibilities to the Group and its
shareholders.

In November 2004, the Stock
Exchange issued the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices
and Corporate Governance Report”
(the “Code”), which took effect for
accounting periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2005. The Code
sets out principles of good corporate
governance and two levels of

recommendations, namely:

e Code Provisions (listed companies
are expected to comply with
all these provisions or to give
considered reasons for any
deviation); and

* Recommended Best Practices
(listed companies are
encouraged to comply with these
recommendations or to give reasons
for any deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board
established the “RoadShow Code

on Corporate Governance” (the
“RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow

Code since then. On 8 March 2006,
the Board approved and adopted

a number of new sections of the
RoadShow Code which, among other
things, rectified the two deviations
from the code provisions (in the

Code of Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix

14 of the Listing Rules) as reported

in the Annual Report for the year
ended 31 December 2005. The
RoadShow Code was further updated
in March 2009 in accordance with

the amendments to the Listing Rules
which had become effective from

1 January 2009.

The Company was in compliance with
all applicable code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for
promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising its affairs
in a responsible and effective manner.
Each director should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the
Group.

The major types of decisions that are
taken by the Board are those relating
to:
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e the appointment of the Chairman,
Managing Director (“MD”), members
of the Executive Committee,

Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee, and the Company
Secretary;

¢ the strategic plans and objectives of
the Company;

¢ the monitoring and controlling of
the Group’s operating and financial
performance; and

e the assessment and management
of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

The Board delegates the Group’s day-
to-day operations to the MD.

The Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group’s financial
statements for each financial year or
period that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that year
or period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31
December 2008, the Directors have:

e selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently;

e made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and

e prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements. This responsibility

extends to annual and interim reports,
other “price-sensitive” announcements
and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules,

as well as reports to regulators and
information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.
The responsibility of the external
auditors for the audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2008 is

set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 64 to 65 of this
Annual Report.

Composition

The Board is composed of eleven
Directors as at 31 December 2008,
three of whom are Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”). These
INEDs bring a wide range of business
and financial experience to the Board,
which contributes to the effective
direction of the Group.

Details of all Directors, including the
Chairman, MD, Executive Directors
(“EDs”), Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs”) and INEDs are set out

on pages 36 to 41 of this Annual
Report. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships)
among members of the Board are
also disclosed. There is no such
relationship between the Chairman
and the MD.

In order to reinforce independence,
accountability and responsibility,
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the posts of the Chairman and the
MD are held separately by Mr John
Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo Tik
Sang respectively. The Chairman

is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly with
good corporate governance practices
and procedures, whilst the MD is
responsible for managing the Group’s
businesses in a manner consistent
with the Group’s standards and in
accordance with specific plans,
instructions or directions of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December
2008, the Board at all times complied
with the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment

of at least three INEDs and also

the requirement that one of these
INEDs should possess appropriate
professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirement in the
Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from
each INED of his or her independence
from the Company. The Company
considers all of the INEDs to be
independent.

The Board met regularly throughout
the year to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operational and

financial performance of the Group. All
Directors are kept informed on a timely
basis of major changes that may affect

the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations.
Written procedures are also in place
for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s
expense. No request was made by
any Director for such independent
professional advice in 2008. Four
Board meetings were held during
2008.

Board Committees

The Board has appointed the following
committees to oversee various
aspects of the Company’s affairs.

The composition of these Board
Committees during 2008 is set out in
Table 1.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was

established on 12 September 2001.
The Committee is composed of four
Directors, three of whom are NEDs.

The Executive Committee meets
regularly throughout the year and

on an ad hoc basis if necessary to
review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the
Group. These projects include major
acquisitions, investments and their
funding requirements.

During 2008, the Executive Committee
held four meetings.
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Table 1: Composition of Various Board Committees &1 : 8REEEZE &K
|4
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
= THZEES EREES FMEES REEES
Independent Non-Executive Directors By kI {TESE :
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI M M M
rRRELT KE B8 K8
HUI Ki On M M M
FRER K E D= KB
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung C
FREET E-3
Non-Executive Directors JEH{TEE :
John CHAN Cho Chak Nee? M
BRAEER et K E
Michael WONG Yick-kam e 2 M M C C
EITH T2 KB KE FFE FE
YUNG Wing Chung’\e3 C C
L KE FF FE
Winnie NG Note 4 M M
LRt e KE K8
John Anthony MILLER Nete® C
i s EE
Edmond HO Tat Man Nete 6 M
s Mo 8
Andrew SO Sing Tak et ” M
B MET KE
Executive Director #11TE= :
Alex MO Tik SangMeteé M
EE@/_:E Hfst 8 EXE\
C: Chairman /&  M: Member 5 &
Notes: et -
1 Ceased to be Chairman of Executive Committee and appointed as Vice Chairman of 1 A=EENFHEANAETBARAARRIITREESERERE
Executive Committee of the Company with effect from 9 May 2008 EEAITTHREZEESEET/E
2 (a) Ceased to be a member of Executive Committee of the Company with effect from 2 (a) B=ETN\ERANAETBALIAGTHRESSHKE
9 May 2008 s - N _ - \/,
(b) Resigned as Deputy Chairman and Non-Executive Director, a member of Audit (6) ‘? =—FFNET @H THEH &ri REIBIER i’# BT
Committee, Chairman of Remuneration Committee and of Nomination Committee of EF BHUZEEKE  FHZEEREEZRAETR
the Company with effect from 20 November 2008 3 B-ETN\FE+—A-+HEEZFTAEEARFGLERIEH
3 Appointed as Deputy Chairman and Non-Executive Director, a member of Audit TEE HEZSeKE  FHZEEeK kg EJ-b-ET 1
Committee, Chairman of Remuneration Committee and of Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from 20 November 2008 & 5; % /MF;LH TERRTBRARNATRERRHAR
4 Ceased to be a member of Executive Committee and appointed as a member of Audit BRI RERZAEME
Committee of the Company with effect from 13 October 2008 5 BZEENF=ZA-THAR-ZFZNFRANBESFIEZE
5 Appointed as Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Executive Committee of the FRARRNAIFFHTEERITRESSFE
Company with effect from 20 March 2008 and 9 May 2008 respectively 6 B-ET)\E+H+=HEEEEAIRFENTEERT

Appointed as Non-Executive Director and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company with effect from 13 October 2008

Resigned as Non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of Executive
Committee of the Company with effect from 2 June 2008

Appointed as Managing Director and a member of Executive Committee of the Company
with effect from 15 April 2008 and 9 May 2008 respectively

8

KZE8/KE
B=ZZZENFANAZBEHELR
HKZEEEKE
BE-TENFHA+RAR=-ZFTZTN\GFERANAES
HRANREFHEERITREZSGK R

AFFMITEERTBERT
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established
on 11 April 2001. The Committee is
now composed of five NEDs, three of
whom are INEDs. The MD is required
to attend each Audit Committee
meeting as requested by the members
of the Committee. After each meeting,
the Audit Committee reports to the
Board on significant issues.

The Audit Committee is to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to accounting and reporting
practices, to improve the credibility
and objectivity of the Company’s
financial and other reports, and to
strengthen the systems of internal
control, risk management and
compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

During 2008, the Audit Committee
held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following
documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the
Directors, Independent Auditor’'s
Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December
2007 and 2007 Annual Report, with
a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

the Company’s Interim Financial
Report for the six months ended

30 June 2008 and Interim Report
2008, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

the Company’s accounting policies
and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of
Hong Kong;

the audit plan of the External
Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2008, including the
extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

the results of the external audits;

the audit fees payable to the
External Auditors for the six months
ended 30 June 2008 and for the
year ended 31 December 2008, and
terms of engagement of the External
Auditors for approval by the Board;

the results of the 2007 and 2008
internal audits performed by an
outsourced professional firm;
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e the 2008 internal audit plans of
an outsourced professional firm
including the extent of co-ordination
between the Audit Committee and
the professional firm;

* the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and
its subsidiaries, including (i) Sales
and Marketing, (i) Billing, Credit
Controls and Receipt Handling,

(iii) Information Technology General
Control, (iv) Treasury Process at
RoadShow, (v) Review of the current
status of operation at Shanghai
Yafei Advertising Company Limited
and (vi) Review of AdSociety Daye
Advertising Company Limited
performed by an outsourced
professional firm; and

e the compliance by the Company
with all applicable laws, regulations,
standards and best practice
guidelines.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 23
March 2004 comprising three NEDs,
two of whom are INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee is
intended to define and articulate

a compensation philosophy or
strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve
this objective, the Remuneration

Committee formulates policies on
and reviews the remuneration of
the Company'’s Directors and senior
management.

The principal elements of the
Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

¢ no individual should determine his or
her own remuneration package;

e remuneration packages should be
on a par with companies with whom
the Company competes for human
resources;

e the Company should aim
at designing remuneration
packages that attract and retain
executives needed to run the
Group successfully and motivate
executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst it should
avoid paying an excessive amount
for such purposes;

® remuneration packages should
reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well
as the complexity of work; and

® remuneration packages should be
structured in such a way that can
provide incentives to Directors and
senior management to improve their
individual performance.
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During 2008, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting. The
work performed by the Remuneration
Committee in 2008 included the
following:

® reviewing the remuneration
of Directors and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and assessing criteria
for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard
to the Group’s business objectives
and targets; and

e reviewing the principal elements
of the remuneration packages of

senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the
Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006 comprising three NEDs, two
of whom are INEDs. The principal
functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

® reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed
changes;

¢ identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board
members, and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for Directorships;

e assessing the independence
of Independent Non-Executive
Directors; and

® making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the Managing
Director.

During 2008, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. The
work performed by the Nomination
Committee in 2008 included the
following:

® reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and
making recommendations to the
Board relating to the retirement
and re-appointment of Directors by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company;

e identifying individuals suitably
qualified to became Board
members, and selecting and
making recommendations to be
Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and

® reviewing the independence of
Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Details of Directors’ attendance at

the Board and Board Committee
Meetings, the AGM and Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) held in 2008
are set out in Table 2.
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Table 2: Directors’ attendance at various meetings held in 2008

R2BEERNZEZ N\ FEOZEZR2LFEBR

=

4
Meetings Attended / Held FriifE / SB17&#%
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination AGM SGM

Directors Board Committee = Committee Committee Committee BR BR
= BEE® THRZEY BEXZE® FHEES REZE® BFAE BiXE
Independent Non-Executive Directors By JEHTES :
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 3/4 - 2/3 1/1 3/3 1/1 1/1
®EBEL
HUI Ki On 1/4 - 2/3 0/1 2/3 0/1 11
A%
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung 2/4 - 3/3 - - on 11
FREEL
Non-Executive Directors JFH{TEE :
John CHAN Cho Chak 4/4 4/4 - - - 11 11
PR =
Michael WONG Yick-kamNete 7 3/4 1/4 2/3 11 1/3 11 -
HICHE M1
YUNG Wing Chung "2 1/4 - 1/3 - 1/3 - 11
78 5k R it 2
Winnie NG Netes 4/4 2/4 1/3 - - 1/1 1/1
hzEg M3
John Anthony MILLER Nete 4 2/4 2/4 - - - 1/1 11
e wira
Edmond HO Tat Manete® 1/4 1/4 - - - - 11
(AT Wit s
Mak Chun Keung 2/4 - - - - 0/1 0/1
BHRoA
Anthony NG 1/4 - - - - 0/1 0/1
fhskiE
Andrew SO Sing Tak ot 6 1/4 2/4 - - - 0/1 -
BR7RE Wit e
Executive Director #17#% :
Alex MO Tik Sang"ete” 3/4 2/4 - - - 1/1 1/1
i A T
Notes:
(1) (a) Ceased to be a member of Executive Committee of the Company with effect from 9 ENFERAANAETHAEARGIITRESESKE

May 2008 \F+—A -+ AEFELRRAEERTER

(b) Resigned as a director of the Company and ceased to be a member of Audit
Committee, Chairman of Remuneration Committee and of Nomination Committee of
the Company with effect from 20 November 2008
(2) Appointed as a director of the Company, a member of Audit Committee, Chairman of
Remuneration Committee and of Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
20 November 2008
(3) Ceased to be a member of Executive Committee and appointed as a member of Audit
Committee of the Company with effect from 13 October 2008
(4) Appointed as a director of the Company and Chairman of Executive Committee of the
Company with effect from 20 March 2008 and 9 May 2008 respectively
(5) Appointed as a director of the Company and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company with effect from 13 October 2008
(6) Resigned as a director of the Company and ceased to be a member of Executive
Committee of the Company with effect from 2 June 2008
(7) Appointed as Managing Director of the Company and a member of Executive Committee
of the Company with effect from 15 April 2008 and 9 May 2008 respectively
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal
procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. Appointments are
first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then
submitted to the Board for decision
with reference to criteria that include
professional knowledge and industrial
experience, personal ethics, integrity
and personal skills, and the time
commitments of the candidates.
Thereafter, all Directors are subject to
re-election by the shareholders at the
general meetings in their first year of
appointment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of
not more than three years.

Directors’ Securities
Transactions

During 2008, the Company required

all its Directors to comply with the
Model Code as set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they fully
complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout
the year 2008.

The Company’s Code on Securities
Transactions is prepared on terms
no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Interests in
Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the

shares of the Company are set out in
the Report of the Directors section on
pages 58 to 59 of this Annual Report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for
maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls in RoadShow and
reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Board and
the Audit Committee have decided to
outsource the review of the internal
controls function to an independent
professional firm (the “Internal Auditor”)
and the Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of
such systems of internal controls as
well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls
and risk management procedures.

Quialified personnel throughout the
Group maintain and monitor the
systems of controls on an ongoing
basis and the MD and Head of
Finance have to report any significant
changes, deficiencies and material
weaknesses in, and fraud related

to, internal controls to the Audit
Committee and the Group’s Internal
Auditors.
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The Company’s management and
employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditor with particular experience in
assessing process risks and control
procedures, have evaluated the
Company’s control environment,
conducted risk assessments of
businesses and processes and
documented those processes that are

critical to the Company’s performance.

In accordance with the audit plan
designed by the Internal Auditor and
agreed by the Audit Committee, the
Internal Auditor updates and reviews
the Company’s internal control system
every year in such a way that the
update and review of all the major
components of the internal control
system are completed within a period
of three years.

During 2008, the Internal Auditor
reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with
relevant policies and procedures of
the Company. The scope covered the
following processes:

e Sales and Marketing

e Billing, Credit Controls and Receipt
Handling

e |nformation Technology General
Control

e Treasury Process at RoadShow

* Review of the current status
of operation at Shanghai Yafei
Advertising Company Limited

e Review of AdSociety Daye
Advertising Company Limited

The Internal Auditor then provided
recommendations to management to
improve internal controls. Based on
the findings and comments from the
Internal Auditor and Audit Committee,
the Board considered the internal
control system effective and adequate
and decided there were no significant
areas of concern that might affect the
Company’s shareholders.

With respect to procedures and
internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive

information, the Company

e is aware of its obligations under
the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that information that is
expected to be price-sensitive
should be announced immediately;

e conducts its affairs with close regard
to the “Guide on disclosure of price-
sensitive information” issued by the
Stock Exchange in 2002;

¢ has included in its Code of
Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or
insider information; and

® has established and implemented
procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs. Senior staff of the Group are
identified and authorised to act as
the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that

the independence of external auditors

should not be impaired by other non-

audit assignments, the Group ensures

that assignments other than statutory

audits undertaken by external

auditors should not have an adverse

impact on their independence. The
External Auditors are also required
to review their relationship with the
Group and furnish confirmation to

the Audit Committee confirming their

independent status.

During 2008, the External Auditors

(including any entity under common

control, ownership or management
with the external auditors or any

entity that a reasonable and informed

third party having knowledge of all

relevant information would reasonably

conclude as part of the audit firm

nationally or internationally) provided

the audit and non-audit services to the

Group. Details are set out in Table 3.

An independence confirmation has
been obtained from the External Auditor
confirming that for the year ended 31
December 2008 and thereafter to the
date of this Annual Report, the External
Auditor is independent of the Group

in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct

for Directors and Employees (the
“CCDE”) has long been established

to ensure that both Directors and
employees are kept abreast of and
fulfill a set of defined ethical obligations
and appropriate behaviours when
conducting businesses and/or
performing their duties. The CCDE also
provides guidance on responsibility

to the Group’s shareholders,
customers and the community. Any
member in breach of the CCDE is
subject to disciplinary action. The
CCDE is updated from time to time,
taking into account changes in the
relevant legislation and the business
environment.

Table3 %3
d 2008 2007
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Audit 1,875,450 1,785,500
B
Non-audit services 492,400 385,500
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Investors Relations and
Communications

The Company continues to pursue a
pro-active policy of promoting investor
relations and communications by
holding meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts. In
accordance with the Listing Rules,

the Company would arrange for the
notice to shareholders to be sent in
the case of annual general meetings
at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and to be sent at least 10
clear business days in the case of all
other meetings. Under the Bye-laws
of the Company, all shareholders have
21 clear days’ notice of the Annual
General Meeting and Special General
Meeting for passing of a special

resolution, and 14 clear days’ notice of
all other general meetings at which the

Company’s directors and Committee
Chairmen or members are available
to answer their questions. The results
of any voting by poll are declared on

or before the first business day after
the meeting and are published on the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s
website together with details of the
meeting, including the time and
venue and major resolutions. As a
channel to further promote effective
communication, the Company’s
website is maintained to disseminate
corporate information and other
relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically and on a
timely basis.

During 2008, the Board confirmed
that there were no significant changes
made in the Company’s bye-laws.

REEBRRBRE

ANAR—EHEITREBREREEBER RN
SRBMMBUR - BURIS I E IR &
SMEMEE - WARRBAFRE AR
RAIBRIE ETRA  RERKERRI R
ZHXEE MAAEMAGRIELRT
KATEE - REARIMA %?%%ﬂﬁ
RREBF ARG K ABBERIRZERM
FzREFRAERITANE = +— %ZE
BimE - RRFTAEMBRRAGRITAR
TXREEBA  AREEEREEB®E
FK B ARG EEIEHEEMIEM - iR
ERAFTAZERERENGRBITERE
BAEEARZAEM  WERGHFE
(RFERITRRE B RFBRER) T
BB AT AR R, - (ERE— SR
EERBBREE - AR RS EE
BFAHRERARER REAM AR B &
SERTEE R o

R-ZENF  EEEHRLAFNAT
MR mEREE) o



FINANCIAL REPORTS Bi#%5#k &

o6
o4

66
68
70
71

72
74

Report of the Directors #fg&#Hsz

Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of
RoadShow Holdings Limited i@ iaRATKRE 2 B ZemEss

Consolidated Income Statement #&aExx

Consolidated Balance Sheet &#éagEafEx

Balance Sheet #EaEx

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s&rétgExggx
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #éBengEx

Notes to the Financial Statements etikER s



56

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERHEE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Principal place of business

RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and principal place of business at 9 Po Lun Street, Lai
Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and management services for the Multi-media On-board
(the “MMOB”) business and the operation of media advertising
management services through marketing advertising spaces on
transit vehicle exteriors, shelters and outdoor signages.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial
year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 66 to
133 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.00 cents per share (2007: HK8.88 cents per share
including a final dividend of HK5.00 cents per share and a
special dividend of HK3.88 cents per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Fixed assets
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

John CHAN Cho Chak
GBS, JP
YUNG Wing Chung

Winnie NG

Alex MO Tik Sang

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP

HUI Ki On*
GBS, CBE, QPM, CPM

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung* JP

John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE

Anthony NG

MAK Chun Keung

Edmond HO Tat Man

Michael WONG Yick-kam

Andrew SO Sing Tak

* Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), Mr John CHAN Cho Chak, Ms Winnie NG, Dr
Eric LI Ka Cheung and Mr HUI Ki On retire from the Board by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

Chairman

Deputy Chairman
(Appointed on

20 November 2008)
Deputy Chairman
(Re-designated to

Deputy Chairman on

13 October 2008)
(Appointed as Alternate

Director to

Mr Anthony Ng on

15 December 2008)
Managing Director
(Appointed on

15 April 2008)

(Appointed on

19 January 2009)
(Appointed on

20 March 2008)

(Appointed on

13 October 2008)
(Resigned on

20 November 2008)
(Resigned on

2 June 2008)

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Directors (continued)

Profiles of the Directors of the Company are set out on pages
36 to 41 of this Annual Report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31 December
2008 had the following interests in the shares of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

=2-1¢ )
RATEENENTHRAERECEEEIE ©

AN B S EL AT (AT BT B8 2 B 3 4R B A 0 B S SR AT O AR R
BEAELBEEEINESILEAR -—FRELRR
ASREEAMNBRRKLEEANE  BIEHEERR
—ROEEREINOERERORBEL -

EERRO - AEAROREESNESERRA

RIBCEF M EGRPIDEI2EMFENES LR
SITRABRGERARBSRMNEE  RIBTNF
TZA=ZT - AEENARFEENARQTF - HER
AE - WEARREMAREE(ERB(EF TR
TERBID) B B A o A LA T A s

Interests in issued shares REBITRAPHER
% of total
Total issued
number of shares
Personal Family  Corporate Other shares held E2E
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests =Tl BRITRG
BEnER BAER Rk DAEER HibE it 17 42 25 BAkl
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ZRE BREEEBE01 TZEER
Winnie NG (Note 2) hElE(ME2) 1,000,000 — - 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Anthony NG (Note 2) hoxcE(fFE2) - — — 123,743 123,743 0.0%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) (Note 1): Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HBEERERERAD([HE)) (Hit1) SREEBEI TZ2EEKR
John CHAN Cho Chak  [R#8)2 2,000 — — — 2,000 0.0%
Winnie NG (Note 3) hEE (FizES3) 41,416 — — 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
Anthony NG (Note 3) Rk (FizE3) 233,954 — — 21,000,609 21,234,563 5.3%
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

Interests in issued shares (continued)

Notes:

1 TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

2 Each of Ms Winnie NG and Mr Anthony NG has interest in 123,743
shares in the Company as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which
beneficially held the shares.

3 Each of Ms Winnie NG and Mr Anthony NG has interest in 21,000,609
shares in TIH as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially
held the shares.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

Share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company in the Group,
to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide an opportunity for
employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years ending on 6 June
2011, after which no further options will be granted.
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Share option scheme (continued)

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2008 was 99,736,533 shares which
represented 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
31 December 2008. In respect of the maximum entitlement of
each participant under the Scheme, the number of securities
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.1 of the Company.

As at 31 December 2008, no options were outstanding.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

At 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

FTERRRAEMALRRG HRARO R E®E
HNEBERAR

RZZBZENF+ZA=+—0 BEARAEEEES
THRABINMALAFHEARB SR HET B
(EERCEZLHEED)EXVEB) 2 B Ko 5 B A
R ERE - BEREBEGE S LB EGED)E XV
FoN3DBRERAMGARFIREERARZME
RARF A RIRCGES KR ED])EF 336 HRAHNA
REELME  FEET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BREEBEITZEER

Total % of total
Registered Corporate number of issued shares
shareholders interests shares held 2B BT
BRERR DR Fris R B BROBED
Substantial shareholders FERR
TIH (Note) & (pIEE) - 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 — 728,127,410 73.01%
Other person Hit AL
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A. 69,956,000 — 69,956,000 7.01%
and others REAM

Note: KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the Company.
KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, which
is accordingly deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by KMB Resources Limited in the Company under SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

EEmaEs

ARRHEAAZEBR LT - HEBARKFFRMERR
VTESEZITEFNEERH  EARREERNAFE
Tk Z ARREFREMNRHREZERERME -

FREFRHESD

RAFREEAR > AEETBEEF LEEEEGE ZH
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Percentage of the Group’s total

HAEEEETL
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BAEP 10%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAER 22%
The largest supplier B ER 22%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAHERES 46%

At no time during the year have the Directors and their
associates had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

During the year, KMB Public Bus Services Holdings Limited
and The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, which
are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH, are the largest
customer and largest supplier of the Group respectively.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Bank loan

Particulars of bank loan of the Company and the Group as
at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.
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Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 42 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 134 to
135 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments of The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
under the regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes
are defined contribution plans and their particulars are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
HUEEEE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of RoadShow Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
66 to 133, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_FRN\EF+ A=+ B LFRE(REETHE)

2008 2007
Note $’°000 $’000
M 5E T Fit
Turnover [=E 3 148,412 134,268
Other revenue and other net income HAb A R H Ath 2 )5 58 4 35,560 47,090
Total operating revenue A PN 183,972 181,358
Operating expenses rEER
Royalty, licence and management fees ENE BHBLEREE (51,588) (43,154)
Staff expenditure 8 Tk (24,789) (18,448)
Depreciation and amortisation e RN (14,638) (23,123)
Repairs and maintenance 5 RIRE (9,093) (9,227)
Cost of inventories TFEKA (3,285) (3,807)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEWBR OB B 18 (414) (65)
Impairment loss on fixed assets & & ERESE = (3,000)
Other operating expenses HihL s 8 H (37,222) (42,219)
Total operating expenses KEBRBE 5 (141,029) (143,033)
Profit from operations KERF 42,943 38,325
Finance costs B 7% & 5 (300) (1,7086)
Share of profit of associate FE(RERE N R BT 14,141 12,538
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest BIEH S8 & AR BMH
in associate w2 W 18(a) - 10,243
Profit before taxation BrBt AT 2 F 5 56,784 59,400
Income tax FTiSH 6(a) (7,062) (2,003)
Profit for the year EEEER 27(a) 49,722 57,397
Attributable to: BT
Equity shareholders of the Company AR EIREE 42,615 49,620
Minority interests LHAR RS 7,107 7,777
Profit for the year EEEEF 9 49,722 57,397
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2008 2007
Note $’000 $’000
i T Fr
Dividends payable to equity shareholders ZFEEENEATREN
of the Company attributable to the year: RE :
Dividends proposed after the balance REEBRTIRD
sheet date [ikdsH 10(a) 49,868 88,566
Earnings per share (in Hong Kong cents) SRERN W)
Basic B WiN 11(a) 4.27 4.98
Diluted e 11(b) N/A FEHR N/A i

The notes on pages 74 to 133 form part of these financial
statements.

FETAEEFE 133 AN B A BIMEKH —3D -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HeEEREBER

At 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZENF+ A=+ —HUZBEEFE)

2008 2007
Note $°000 $’000
B 5% T Fit

Non-current assets IRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13 11,855 25,868
Media assets HEEAE 14 778 1,122
Goodwill RS 15 - —
Non-current prepayments JEREFEN A 16 28,741 38,322
Interest in associate RN 18 256,926 282,623
Deferred tax assets BLEHIBEE 25(b) 6,227 9,560
304,527 307,495

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 818 1,450
Amount due from ultimate holding company A e=3 3 i NGIE S 20(a) 4,773 2,222
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary R —FE R 2B QR RE 20(d) 1,863 —
Accounts receivable FEUBR K 21 25,885 21,694
Other receivables and deposits Efh W AR Rk 10,415 5,996
Prepayments FEf K8 16 9,580 9,580
Current tax recoverable AT Bl A HA A 18 25(a) 2,959 2,315
Pledged bank deposit EEMEEITER 24 = 38,000
Bank deposits and cash RITERERE 22 533,899 605,957
590,192 687,214
Current liabilities REEE

Accounts payable FEfTRRR 23 4,403 5,362
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEAT— R R BB A | F0E 20(d) 5,705 8,526
Other payables and accruals Hub e R R ERT B A 27,318 50,228
Bank loan RITER 24 - 38,000
Current tax payable FET A HARL B 25(a) 551 1,276
37,977 108,392
Net current assets REBEEFEE 552,215 583,822
Total assets less current liabilities EELAERRBER 856,742 891,317

Non-current liabilities ERBER
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 25(b) 2,295 4,047
NET ASSETS EERE 854,447 887,270
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2008 2007
Note $’000 $’000
M 5E T Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAEFHES

Share capital & A 27(a) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HiET 742,324 782,254

Total equity attributable to equity RATREENS
shareholders of the Company AR 27(a) 842,061 881,991
Minority interests PERRER 27(a) 12,386 5,279
TOTAL EQUITY AR 854,447 887,270

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17 March 2009.

John CHAN Cho Chak

B 1E 2
Chairman
*E

The notes on pages 74 to 133 form part of these financial

statements.

REEFEN_ZTTNF=A+EBERELHATEDL -

Alex MO Tik Sang

FHE

Managing Director

EFATE

BT74EEE1BENNEEAY BRI —IBMH -
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BALANCE SHEET
BERAER

At 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZENF+ A=+ —HUZBEEFE)

2008 2007
Note $°000 $’000
B 5% T F
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIRE 17 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LB /B /A R 3R 1B 20(c) 542,977 —
605,812 62,835
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company — FEU & 435 ik A 7 308 20(a) 4,773 4,773
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W B BB 2 R FROE 20(b) = 513,381
Other receivables and deposits HEh R R R IL S 4,066 617
Pledged bank deposit BEIPIRITFER 24 — 38,000
Bank deposits and cash BITERERS 22 367,905 417,942
376,744 974,713
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 20(b) 223,105 189,807
Other payables and accruals Hin R R ERT & A 7,194 7,101
Bank loan RITER 24 - 38,000
230,299 234,908
Net current assets REBEEFE 146,445 739,805
NET ASSETS EEFE 752,257 802,640
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFES
Share capital %N 27(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HEES 652,520 702,903
TOTAL EQUITY ERam 27(b) 752,257 802,640

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

17 March 2009.

John CHAN Cho Chak
BR1E 2

Chairman

T

The notes on pages 74 to 133 form part of these financial

statements.

KRELFEN - ZETNFZA+LHERELFAEDL -

Alex MO Tik Sang

EHE

Managing Director

BEREE

FTAAEF 133 AMNMEBAT BIHERO—ED -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GABREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_FFN\F+-A=ZT - RALFRERERE)

2008 2007
Note $’°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Mt Fr Fr Fr Fr
Total equity at 1 January R—A—BWESEE 887,270 863,305
Net income recognised directly in  EEREZAEINE
equity: WA :
Exchange differences on translation RMBEBAINEBE
of the financial statements of HEMER =5
operations outside Hong Kong 27(a) 6,021 8,081
Net profit for the year rEERAFE 27(a)
Attributable to: T
Equity shareholders of the Company RARKRE 42,615 49,620
Minority interests DEBRREEE 7,107 49,722 7,777 57,397
Release upon deemed disposal RRIEL BB &R A
of partial interest in associate BB 48 22 B AR PR 27(a) = (1,782)
Total recognised income and TEERINBAR
expense for the year XA 55,743 63,696
Attributable to: EIEIMT
Equity shareholders of the Company RARRE 48,636 55,637
Minority interests DER RS 7,107 8,059
55,743 63,696
Purchase of minority interests BALBRFEER 27(a) = (606)
Premium on additional investment W B R RS IR E R)EE
in a subsidiary 27(a) - (605)
Dividends declared or approved during 4 /A2 2k sk # /£ H RS
the year 10(b) (88,566) (30,819)
Dividends paid to minority interests B FLEBRNRE 27(a) = (7,701)
Total equity at 31 December R+T=ZB=+—81
EREE 854,447 887,270

The notes on pages 74 to 133 form part of these financial

statements.

FT4AAEF 133 ANNTEB AT BIMKRN —EH -




72

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mERTAER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_FRN\EF+ A=+ B LFRE(REETHE)

2008 2007
Note $’000 $’000
M Fx Fit
Operating activities RETEH
Profit before taxation W Bt AT 2 56,784 59,400
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation and amortisation WEREHE 14,638 23,123
Impairment loss on fixed assets BETEEEREBE = 3,000
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEEERSE 241 —
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEWBR ORI B 5 18 414 55
Write-down of inventories 17 & MU = 109
Reversal of write-down of inventories BB S MO (204) -
Finance costs M%ER 300 1,706
Share of profit of associate fE(EE 2 AT B (14,141) (12,538)
Interest income F B WA (24,411) (30,926)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest Rk NS )
in associate TR 2 WS = (10,243)
Foreign exchange gain P 3 U s (5,678) (486)
Operating profit before changes in HEESEHANCERT
working capital 27,943 33,200
Decrease in prepayments TE R IE R
(non-current and current) (ER® RnigEn) 9,581 14,708
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, /(38 m) 836 (672)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from JEW R AT IR A B R IE
ultimate holding company (3gm),wWd (2,551) 2,214
Increase in amount due from a fellow JE W — 1 [R] KBS B8 RIFRIE
subsidiary 0 (1,863) —
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEH AR TR (35 0) R (4,605) 4,195
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables and  HihEWERZ Rigze
deposits (gm), wWd (4,419) 1,150
Decrease in accounts payable &~ BR OB (959) (537)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to FE A~ — [ [ KBS B8 RIFRIE
a fellow subsidiary CRLA),/#hn (2,821) 8,526
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HEMNERRETER
accruals R A) /48 (22,910) 3,688
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (AR) RARKLIHNES (1,768) 66,372
Interest received BT & 6,685 4,621
Tax (paid)/refunded (B /REFIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - BNBEEFEB (4,611) (6,903)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded — BRFEBENEHR 145 564
— PRC income tax paid — BRPEHEMEH (2,384) (1,144)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR) /" RELEITEHN
operating activities REFHE (1,933) 63,510
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2008 2007
Note $’000 $’000
i T Ft
Investing activities RETES
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEEMK (403) (124)
Purchase of minority interest BALHREER = (1,211)
Loan to associate BETFHEAR = (23,544)
Interest received from associate =R =INGIRTISY 2,138 904
Interest received B U F 8 12,727 22,570
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE (AR RETBN
investing activities BEFE 14,462 (1,405)
Financing activities mMEETH
Increase in bank deposits maturing over ={AA%EERIRITFER
three months 0 (351,605) (43,071)
Decrease in pledged bank deposit BRI RITF OB 38,000 1,520
Repayment of bank loan EERITEN (38,000) —
Interest paid ERFE (300) (1,708)
Dividends paid B E (88,566) (30,819)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ENFLEBRAKE - (7,701)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBETBHNERESTHE (440,471) (81,777)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBLEEBYRIFE
equivalents (427,942) (19,672)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BENBEERES
L&Y 552,457 572,129
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZ#EHNEE 1,279 —
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—HWER:
31 December RESZEY 22 125,794 552,457

The notes on pages 74 to 133 form part of these financial FET7T4EEF 13BN TEART BRI —IBMD -

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIF AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBERI

1

BIRBREEE)

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
and the Group’s interest in associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated

liabilities,

assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year relating to fixed
assets and goodwill have been discussed in notes 13
and 15 respectively.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit
or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

1
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G FRERMA T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmEETIN

1

BIRBREEE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

(d)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the associate’s net assets, unless it
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is stated
at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associate for the year, including
any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in associate recognised for the year (see
notes 1(e) and (j)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associate (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investment in
associate is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)), unless it is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(j)).
In respect of an associate, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

1 FESHBE®
(d) BEAFE

(e)

AEBEEBEARZHRSMELENRE
R IRAKEEBERFMENER
eRE G BRMARERBEISHEEDHE
BEEEMES AL RERBAGHNRE
BERRER

ARREEBBERANBERRKRE TR
AROREEE(R M) 58 - BRIEER
DERFKIENEEE -

[k

BEREBAGABERRRERFTBLA
SEEMRBRARNAEEEE BERK
RABORAFEESHER ©

BEDRKARZTREBRENE -BEg
DhREERSEEEN  WEFETREN G
(RIEE1() - BB ERARME > B2 Lw
BRaMEEEDESHMEZREE -

AEBEERBEBEARNAREEEZ  AER
FARBBEBORAARFEBLEEBEHHBZR
AR ER AT ERE - SRR RERE

=7
e

RERAHERCEEBMABEQAR - £
MEEBARNEBRESEBRAAERELRE
BEmZBR -




78

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)
G FRERM T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B RBHERI - HRBEHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of a fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

(i) Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming cost
in respect of programming rights of presentation.
Expenditure on commissioned and contracted
programmes is amortised to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the licence period.
Programming library is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)).

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Media assets

)]

Media assets represent advertising rights which are the
costs of acquiring operating rights for the placement of
advertisements in advertising display panels in the PRC
and include any directly attributable costs of bringing
advertising display panels to their present condition
and location for their intended use. Advertising rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Advertising rights are amortised to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over 5 years, being the agreed
periods of use of the advertising right.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1 (j)), except where the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1 (j)).

Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables

Current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For current receivables that are carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the receivables and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for similar receivables where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
the receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases.

1

FESHEEX @)
(h)y HBEEE

(U]

(0]

BREERESE  DUEBETENES

R LR RS SRR *¢ﬁ“

BERERRFESRRREFETRIIN

Lﬁf* 3 PSR B9 AR (] B AR B AR AR
o EERTIARARE Rt iE OB EE

Tﬂﬁ%?ﬂwéﬂ%

EERZERESEOHERRAERED
SFEEEERAHENE -

e B 3 T L i FE e R =K

FEWER N B A B IR RSB A R (BB
B ERZOHERARREZERRE R
BORMZ10) IR nTREEBT &
R AlgERARRERBERE(R MR
1)) 58K °

BERME

(i) FEWARS B E
AEENGEZE A RTIRKALD#
%W$W%Zﬁ@ﬁ%%-’uﬁmm
BHEAEANEBROREEE - WELE
MEBEE  AEFRREBESRTS
TR MAER

— BRI BR B9 B R U BR SR T
5 ORERBEDAEY RS EmE
B AKRAEREMWFTRELE
EXR - AIRECERERFRNBRITTH
SEHENR)OEZRTE © WA
EEEHBEEZRMD - AlE
YR TR BB RS RO -




80

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

G RERIA T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

— For current receivables that are carried
at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the receivables and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the receivables’ original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
receivables), where the effect of discounting is
material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the receivables’ carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— fixed assets;

— media assets;

— goodwill;

— programming library;

— interest in associate; and
— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(1) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

(2) Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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G RERIA T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
(38) Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out cost
method and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U}

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Accounts payable and other payables

(n)

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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G RERIA T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in
equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales is recognised
when the related advertisements are telecasted or
commercials appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(i) Fee income from media sales management and
administrative services is recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(iii) Signage production fees are recognised when the
related services are rendered.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(gq) Revenue recognition (continued)

(s)

(iv)

Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the merchandise have been
transferred to the customers. Revenue is stated net
of trade discounts.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investment is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets.

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)
1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESTEE®

(s) Employee benefits (continued) (s) EEFFH®

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve). The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of
equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii)y the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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(BRmEHETIN

BIRBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Related parties (continued)

(w

~

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an

joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

entity under the control,

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen geographical
segment information as the primary reporting format
and business segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and fixed
assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part
of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
tax balances and corporate and financing expenses.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations
and an Amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
However, none of these developments is relevant to the
Group’s or the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 35).

Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
media sales and management and administrative services
for Multi-media On-Board (“MMOB”) business and the
operation of media advertising management services
through marketing advertising spaces on transit vehicle
exteriors, shelters and outdoor signages.

Turnover represents income from media sales and
management and administrative services, net of agency
commission and rebate.
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4 Other revenue and other net income 4 HtbWAREMUKEFE
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Other revenue Hipg A
Sales of merchandise HmiEE 5,420 5,624
Interest income FEHA 24,411 30,926
Sundry revenue EHaplg A 744 2,322
30,575 38,872
Other net income Hit Wz 55
Exchange gain [E % W z= 5,226 8,218
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEETEERE (241) -
4,985 8,218
35,560 47,090
Profit before taxation MRBLATE R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRI E N Bk
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Tt FT
Amortisation of media assets I B EE B B 406 370
Auditor’s remuneration 3Gl 1,887 1,830
Contributions to defined contribution retirement  F 284 ZUR MR EH 21 B9 3%
schemes 614 588
Depreciation e 14,232 22,753
Impairment losses — accounts receivable EEE — IR 414 55
— fixed assets — BEEE - 3,000
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARAFANBHEENRIT
within five years BERFE 300 1,706
Operating lease charges LERES
— land and buildings — T RETF 1,681 1,428
— audio and visual equipment — FEXR 600 —
Production, programming and marketing costs  &4{E « &1 8 K& E KA
(included in other operating expenses) (FrAE A= 20,894 29,733
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6

Income tax in the consolidated income statement 6 IRGZEEBEERAZFAER

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) JIRNGZEERRZBES
represents:
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
T T
Current tax AHHE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the REFEBEBNESHBE
current year 3,274 6,619
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (83) (12)
3,191 6,607
Provision for PRC income tax FEIATS TR E 2,290 997
5,481 7,604
Deferred tax ELHIE
Reversal and origination of temporary TRHMEEZENERD RER
differences 1,293 (5,601)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January FER\EEYH —F B 2 ELTHE
resulting from a change in tax rate BRI E 288 —
1,581 (5,601)
7,062 2,003

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. In February 2008,
the Hong Kong Government announced a decrease
in Hong Kong Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as
from the year ended 31 December 2008. As a result,
the opening balance of deferred tax has been re-
estimated accordingly.

Taxation for the subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at
the appropriate current rates for taxation ruling in the
PRC. According to the income tax law that was passed
by the National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007,
the PRC corporate income tax rate was revised from
33% to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008.

ERNEHBENRBRAFEGBTERTA
FE16.5% (ZZTZTLF 1 17.5%)5HE - ¥
—ETN\FA BEERFAMGBHEE-Z
ENF+ A=+ BULFEHBEARK
SENEBEBNEBENEHHUEHR17.5%
AKE16.5% - ALELEH BNEIEHRD
B E#FEA -

R BB E R RMFIERIZ B R EIRITH
ERTEGE BEZEARRXTRKGRZ
ZTLF A+ HBBANMBEIEG - &
BHEEMSHBEE ST NF-—A—Hie
H133% FNaAZE25% °
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G RERMTE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

6 JRGEEEBRAZABHR @)

(b) BEMXEEHBAREARERTENRR
ZHR

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
T Fir
Profit before taxation BR & AT & A 56,784 59,400
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERBRT AT B RIEFZ BT
calculated at the rates applicable to profits AEEEBEARERTEY
in the tax jurisdictions ZEME 9,927 10,357
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAHRA X NBIEE 575 1,181
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEARBBRANHEBEZE (6,589) (10,428)
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised tax FAENBAFERER
losses utilised during the year HEBENHEYE - (155)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERRBBENR B E 1,868 933
Tax effect of distributable profits of associate & ¥4 E#&I5 & A 5 & FH)
mERE 707 —
Withholding tax in respect of interest income B2 A 51 EUS FE M A &Y
from associate TENE 350 286
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January F&RFEY—H— 80 ZET
resulting from a change in tax rate MIBRBROTE 288 -
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERR (B BE 117 (12)
Others Hth (181) (159)
Actual tax expenses ERHIER 7,062 2,008
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7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EENME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 BRIEEB(RFHERIE 161 1KRT EENME
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: WHIRAT -
2008
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary contributions
fees 5e 28 bonuses BIKER Total
EEhe REAER kAN % @Gt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
F FT T FT FT
Executive Director HTES
Alex MO Tik Sang £l 39 997 534 9 1,579
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
John CHAN Cho Chak BiEE 66 - - - 66
Michael WONG Yick-kam EXE 83 - - - 83
YUNG Wing Chung Ak 20 - - - 20
Winnie NG* hEiE 61 1,671 80 - 1,812
MAK Chun Keung EiRd 55 - - - 55
Anthony NG hkE 55 - - - 55
Andrew SO Sing Tak HAR 23 - - - 23
John Anthony MILLER HEER 43 - — — 43
Edmond HO Tat Man [E5:3'¢ 12 - - - 12
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI RREREL 93 - — — 93
HUI Ki On PR 93 - - - 93
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FREREL 78 - - - 78
721 2,668 614 9 4,012
*  Ms Winnie Ng had been re-designated from executive director to * mBEENMIEZTTENFTAT=AECHRNTES

non-executive director with effect from 13 October 2008. AXRIEMITES -
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7 EENMES@
2007
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit

and benefits  Discretionary  contributions

Directors’ fees 28 bonuses RRER Total
EE Sk REAAEH BT #3R st
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T T Tr
Executive Director YITES
Winnie NG {hFiE 55 1,593 326 — 1,974
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
John CHAN Cho Chak [y 66 — - — 66
Michael WONG Yick-kam EXE 87 — - — 87
MAK Chun Keung -3 55 23 - - 78
Anthony NG hkE 55 - - - 55
LAU Mei Mui, May B%iE 37 — - - 37
Andrew SO Sing Tak B 55 - - - 55
Independent Non-Executive BIEHTES
Directors
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI RERET 83 - - - 83
HUI Ki On TR 83 — - - 83
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FREBRT 78 — - — 78

654 1,616 326 - 2,596
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8

Individuals with highest emoluments 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2007: one) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other three (2007: four) individuals are as follows:

EeMEAL

TEEaMeE A ATHFRERMBES(ZTT L
Fr—R) ZEEEWMLOIAMET - 5=
FZ(ZZZTLEF WB ) &Rae A T8
Ao

2008 2007

$’000 $°000

Fr T+

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e BB NEMER 3,053 4,323
Retirement scheme contributions RARGET IR 35 40
3,088 4,363

The emoluments of the three (2007: four) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ZoEZ(ZETEF  NE )R ALTHOBE
DT ¢

Number of individuals

A
2008 2007
$Nil — $1,000,000 BT — % 1,000,000 7T 1 1
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 7E# 1,000,001 70 — B
1,500,000 7T 2 3

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 9 AATRRREMLEF

Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $38,183,000 (2007:
$55,464,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

ARAREEEHEEGRABE —ERYEBE
38,183,000t W) B F(=Z T T + F: #H &
55,464,0007T) * L&A B2 A A A E) B % R &
ANYEH BRIE -
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10 Dividends 10 RE

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) XEEERNEATRENKE :
Company attributable to the year:

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
T Fir
Final dividend proposed after the balance PEEE BB EZRD KRR
sheet date of HK5.00 cents per share BEREE 50010
(2007: HK5.00 cents per share) (ZZ2TLF Gl
5.0011) 49,868 49,868
Special dividend proposed after the balance  R&E B&EE D IR BIMK
sheet date of HK$Nil per share BEERAEEZT T
(2007: HK3.88 cents per share) (ZETLF : gRBY
3.881ll) - 38,698
49,868 88,566
The dividends proposed after the balance sheet date REEREREZEDRNRELARNEE B
have not been recognised as a liability at the balance ReBE-
sheet date.
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (b) EFEEGEARARRNIRE  ERFRHL
the Company attributable to the previous year, ERIKE :
approved and paid during the year:
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Ft
Final dividend in respect of the previous E—HMBRFERARESR
financial year, approved and paid during BES00MU(ZEZELF -
the year, of HK5.00 cents per share BRRABE3.001L) - BER
(2007: HK3.09 cents per share) F AR KK 49,868 30,819
Special dividend in respect of the previous E—HMBRFEEIRESR
financial year, approved and paid during B38BT L4 -
the year, of HK3.88 cents per share BRBEEZT) ERER
(2007: HK$NIl per share) B KK 3% 38,698 —
88,566 30,819
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1

12

Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $42,615,000 (2007: $49,620,000) and
the weighted average of 997,365,332 ordinary shares
(2007: 997,365,332 shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2007.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Geographical
segment information based on location of assets is chosen
as the primary reporting format because this is more
relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Geographical segments

The Group comprises the following main geographical
segments:

Hong Kong : Provision of media sales and management
services

Mainland China : Provision of media sales and management
services

11

12

BREF
(a) BREFRF

BREARFZREBEAD AL BRKRREMN
BB 42615000 (Z T+ F 8
# 49,620,000 ) R FANBE EHTEBRED
hn4E F 15 $997,365,332 % (= BT A F -
997,365,332 f% )7t &

(b) BREFEF

BE_ZZ)\FL_ZEZLFT-_HA=1—
FLFEYEABMEZENCRTERR

2 HER

DREMDEAEENEBR BRI SMEH -
NEEMERERNME S EENERETIRA
WIEX > AREEERAAREENAP RS -

Es 8
REEEBO /AT EEZMNME R

BB CORMEREHE REERE
B R BE CORMREBIHE REERE
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12 Segment reporting (continued) 12 D EEH @
Geographical segments (continued) &R ()
There are no sales between the geographical segments. HEER RN EETHE -
2008 2007
Share of Share of
Group associate Total Group associate Total
50 BERELR ] FEE EEHERA b
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T S i i T
Segment revenue HEERH
Hong Kong B 141,592 - 141502 129,976 - 129,976
Mainland China RE AR 6,820 - 6,820 4,292 - 4,292
Total a5t 148,412 - 148,412 134,268 - 134,268
Segment result HEXE
Hong Kong &k 22,959 - 22,959 8,484 - 8,484
Mainland China PEKRE 548 14,141* 14,689 (723) 12,538 11,815
Total &t 23,507 14,141 37,648 7,761 12,538 20,299
Unallocated operating income RTHEREERA
and expenses LER 19,436 30,564
57,084 50,863
Finance costs BB (300) (1,706)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial ~ BIEHERL AT
interest in associate En i - 10,243
Income tax FriEH (7,062) (2,003)
Profit for the year REE R 49,722 57,397
Attributable to: EEmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ AR RIRR 42,615 49,620
Minority interests DPEREER 7,107 7,777
49,722 57,397
*  The segment results from share of associate’s profit of $14,141,000 * RBEGEEARRMNOMEEE BB 14,141,000
(2007: $12,538,000), included the share of associate’s turnover of T(ZET 4 B%12,538,0007T) @ B IEEEEH 2
$162,984,000 (2007: $142,368,000). INT )RR IE 162,084,000 T (Z BE A E 1 B

142,368,000 7T) °
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12 Segment reporting (continued)

12 P EERE

Geographical segments (continued) & 5 38 ()
2008 2007
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Unallocated Hong Kong China  Unallocated
B PE AR *FAE Bk FERRE KA
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T i Fr i
Depreciation and amortisation HEREHN 13,945 693 - 22,496 627 -
Impairment losses REER
— accounts receivable - BWER 414 - - 55 - -
— fixed assets - HEEE - - - 3,000 - -
At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
RZBENF+ZAZ+-H RZFT+F+ZA=1-A
Share of Share of
Group associate Total Group associate Total
350 BEHRELD it T5E EEBELR &
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Fr Fr Fi
Segment assets HWEXKEE
Hong Kong 0 87,325 - 87,325 102,880 - 102,880
Mainland China HEAE 2,934 256,926 259,860 2,591 232,623 235,214
90,259 256,926 347,185 105,471 232,623 338,094
Unallocated assets APHEEE 547,534 656,615
Total assets BEE 894,719 994,709
Segment liabilities HEXKAR
Hong Kong BE 33,160 - 33,160 59,486 - 59,486
Mainland China PEARE 4,266 - 4,266 4,605 - 4,605
37,426 - 37,426 64,091 - 64,091
Unallocated liabilities AFHOEEE 2,846 43,348
Total liabilities Bag 40,272 107,439
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12 Segment reporting (continued) 12 D EEH @
Geographical segments (continued) &R ()
Capital expenditure incurred during the year: FNEENERAL :
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Hong Kong B 332 108
Mainland China AR K BE 71 16
403 124
The Group’s geographical segment information based on REBREFPHE ARENMEERDEERTY
location by customers is the same as that based on location IR A EMI AR EEER - It WEE—%
of assets. Accordingly, no further analysis on revenue from REEEP U EMINBER AN DT
external customers by location of customers is provided.
Business segments E3 Pk
The Group’s turnover and operating profit are almost REBEMKNIPHEEERKELBNGRE G EEH
entirely derived from media sales and management & BTPERITHRG - Eit - WmIE IR ¥%E
and administrative services. Accordingly, no analysis by BIEI D H DT ©

business segment is provided.
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13 Fixed assets 13 BEEE
Audio and Hardware Furniture
visual and and Motor
equipment software fixtures vehicles Total
PERB ERREHS GREEE AE @t
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T Fr T T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+E-A—H
feyea 195,321 1,183 578 2,024 199,106
Exchange adjustments i 5 3% - - 8 142 150
Additions AE - 94 30 - 124
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF+ZA
=t+—B&%& 195,321 1,277 616 2,166 199,380
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZNF—-A—H
®F 195,321 1,277 616 2,166 199,380
Exchange adjustments [ERIECES - 1 8 121 130
Additions NE 57 235 111 - 403
Disposals HeE (9,881) — - - (9,881)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\F+ZA
=t+-B&" 185,497 1,513 735 2,287 190,032
Accumulated depreciation and ~ RitTERFESE :
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+E—-A—H
feyea 145,671 703 412 896 147,682
Exchange adjustments EHEE - - 5 72 77
Charge for the year FERTE 22,213 217 81 242 22,753
Impairment loss for the year (note) £ RR{ERE (M) 3,000 - - - 3,000
At 31 December 2007 RZZZTLF+ZA
=t+—B&%& 170,884 920 498 1,210 173,512
At 1 January 2008 RZZTN\F—-A—H
B 170,884 920 498 1,210 173,512
Exchange adjustments ERTIECES - — 5 68 73
Charge for the year FRME 13,681 249 37 265 14,232
Written back on disposal HERED (9,640) — - - (9,640)
At 31 December 2008 RZFENFTZA
=t+—B&%& 174,925 1,169 540 1,543 178,177
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2008 RZZETN\GF+=A
=t+—B&%& 10,572 344 195 744 11,855
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZ+F+=A
=+—R&F 24,437 357 118 956 25,868
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13

14

Fixed assets (continued)

Note on impairment loss of fixed assets:

During the year ended 31 December 2007, management
carried out an assessment of the recoverable amount
of certain fixed assets of the Group. Based on their
assessment, the carrying amount of these fixed assets
was written down by $3,000,000 in 2007. The estimated

13 EEEE )
[E7E & R EE 1B M R

NEBE-_ZT+F+-_A=+—RALFER &
EEHALEEETEEEER ARG SEE#ETT
e EREEMTE  ZSRTEER-TT+
[ BR T 1B #URUS B8 3,000,000 7T © fh&FA] Uk [E
BEDRBEZZEATEEMEEANARRECRE

recoverable amount was determined based on the future EE -
cash flows generated from these fixed assets.
Media assets 14 BEBEE

$'000

T

Cost: %
At 1 January 2007 R-TZTLF—A—R#&F 1,797
Exchange adjustments I 5,8 & 126
At 31 December 2007 RIETZ+EF+_A=1+—H&"F 1,928
At 1 January 2008 RZEENGF—A—B&R 1,923
Exchange adjustments B 5 R 107
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNGFF+ZA=1T—H&F 2,030
Accumulated amortisation: FEtes .
At 1 January 2007 RZTEELF—A—HB&ER 389
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 42
Amortisation for the year FREHE 370
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEE+HE+-_A=1+—RH&"F 801
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF-A—-B&ERF 801
Exchange adjustments [ 5,8 2 45
Amortisation for the year FREE 406
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+_R=1+—B#&T"F 1,252
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2008 R-EENFE+_A=+—RH#&"F 778

At 31 December 2007 R-EZLF+_A=+—RH#&"F 1,122
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15 Goodwill 15 HE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Tt Tt

Cost: B :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BNEt+-A=+—H&=F 12,487 12,487
Accumulated impairment losses: A RERSS :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BNEt+-A=+—H&"=F 12,487 12,487
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December R+-A=+—B#&"F - —

16

17

Note on impairment loss of goodwill:

Management has carried out the impairment assessment
against goodwill in 2006 and considered that the estimated
future cash flows generated from the cash-generating
units (“CGU”), media advertising agency and advertising
design and production in Shanghai, were less than the
carrying value of the goodwill and fixed assets of the CGU.
Therefore, goodwill with carrying amount of $12,487,000
was fully impaired and charged to profit or loss in 2006.

Non-current and current prepayments

Non-current and current prepayments consist of advance
payments for concession and rights for advertising and
media programme placement on transit vehicles and transit
network furniture.

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost FETRGIRE

16

17

72 R (B S 1R T A

u
x|

EEBR -_ZFTXRFHHEFELRENE R

AEEEEL(RNLELENKRBESKE  BES
R RRE)FEENRBFRKAESRELNHE
BELEETEENKREE - Bt REEES

12,487,000 T A BE 2 ERELNR ST F

EHEEANNR -
;F/)ILQ&I)ILEﬁ1:J-%kIE
ERBERDENAREBENTEEH L TERN
LR ES RIEE ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’éﬁﬁﬁﬁww’
MEBRRRE
The Company
AKATE
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
Fr T+
62,835 62,835
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17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 1(c) and have been consolidated into the Group’s

financial statements.

Particulars

17 MIBARRE &
TREHIHBA

)
A ERL - BB BRI - P

R0 BRI /5 B

Pt B /B8 2 B33 2 B 5E 1 (c) BT 7E 38 B0 L AE BB B
RA HEHECHAALAEREMBHRALGEE

RS

o

Attributable equity
interest (%)

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid up capital BiEBR (AT
Name of company operation ERTR direct indirect Principal activity
NEEE EEff, S i B EHERE HE BiE FEER
AdSociety Advertising Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
Agency Limited aBE B2 T wEERK
BEEHEESERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Us$100 - 60 Provision of media sales
Virgin Islands/ 10037 service for advertising on
Hong Kong transit vehicle shelters
HKBRLRE/ REEEEWMERETRES
e B IR B8 8H & R TS
CityVision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 90 Dormant
e P55 10,000 7T Tmex
Cyberstop Limited The British US$1 — 100 Holder of the registered
Virgin Islands/ 1% design and patent in
Hong Kong relation to cyber bus
HEEELESS stops
BE A ABEIFE U
B EE M R AT R E A
Expert Plus Holdings The British US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Virgin Islands/ 17T REERK
Hong Kong
REBELZES,/
G
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Bk 78# 10,000 7T TmEx
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Dormant
B 75 10,000 7T UmEE
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17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 17 MIBATBRE®

Particulars Attributable equity

interest (%)

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid up capital BEBR(AAL)
Name of company operation EETR direct indirect Principal activity
AEER Ve E34 ERERAE HiE BiE TEXEK
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Dormant
i BT TmEE
Road Publications Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
Limited B B 2T KEBTLRamEEER
RoadShow Advertising ~ The People’s US$500,000 — 100 Provision of media
(Beijing) Company Republic of 500,000 %7T advertising agency
Limited (limited China service and design
liability company) EE AR FE and production of
EHRmES(UER) AR advertisements
RER(BREERATR) R A B S R IZ RS K
B RRET HEME
RoadShow Creations Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
Limited 6 ok KEBTHSmEEED
RoadShow Media The British US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Virgin Islands/ 1%7T REZER
Hong Kong
RBEZES,/
N
RoadShow Media Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Provision of media sales
Limited BB B2 T & management services
for advertising on transit
vehicle exteriors and
shelters and for the
MMOB business
REREEWESNRES
EE R B 2 g e
HEIHE REBRYS
RoadShow Productions  The British US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Virgin Islands/ 13%7T REZR
Hong Kong
HBEREAHS/

EE
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17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Attributable equity

17 MIBARRE &

Particulars

interest (%)

)

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid up capital BiER (AL
Name of company operation EBITR direct indirect Principal activity
NEERE EEff, S i B EHRRAE HE BiE FEER
RoadShow Productions Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Production of content for
Limited aBb B2 T MMOB systems
HERDZHERGAR
RoadShow Resources The British US$1 100 — Investment holding
Limited Virgin Islands/ 1€ HEER
Hong Kong
RBRELRS,/
i
RoadVision Holdings The British US$1 — 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited Virgin Islands/ 17T wEERK
Hong Kong
HBRLRE/
£
RoadVision Holdings The British Us$2 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Virgin Islands/ 2%ETT "EER
Hong Kong
RERLES,/
i
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of employment
e B2 T agency services
REBEF N RS
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 95 Dormant
B 7% 10,000 7T UmLE
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17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

18

Particulars

17 MIBATBRE®

Attributable equity
interest (%)

Place of of issued and
. . . . EERE(ADL)
incorporation/ paid up capital

Name of company operation BETR direct indirect Principal activity

AEERB i B ERERAE i BE TEXEK

Shanghai Yingte The People’s RMB1,236,000 - 68 Investment holding
Consulting Company Republic of AER#1,236,000 7T BB R
Limited (sino-foreign China
co-operative joint EE AR R
venture)

FEERERERAR
(RINEIERERZE)

Shanghai Yafei The People’s RMB600,000 - 51 Provision of media
Advertising Company Republic of AR ¥ 600,000 7T advertising agency
Limited (limited China service and design
liability company) PEARLMEH and production of

FELRESEERAR advertisements
(BREMERAD) ﬁﬂ%i@?iﬁiﬁﬁ&

B & R At B ELE

Smart Media Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant

BEAR AT e B 2T TmEE

Interest in associate 18 REE QAT ZER

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$’000 $'000
T T

Share of net assets EIEEEFE 135,657 115,057

Goodwill BES 14,496 14,496

Loans to associate *’“%H /NS 95,714 94,793

Amount due from associate JRE LS B 2 2 B) SRR 11,059 8,277

256,926 232,623
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18 Interest in associate (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Particulars of the associate

Set out below are the particulars of the associate,
which is an unlisted corporate entity.

(a)

18 REE QAT 2 EE @)

BE AR ZHE

AT #FIE S QRIS -
EHREEE -

BRAEIRIE

Attributable

equity
Form of Place of interest
business incorporation % indirect Principal
Name of associate structure and operation PE 4 R 25 R 33 activity
BENTER (BEBER MR LB BREAL FTEEK
AdSociety Daye Sino-foreign equity The People’s 40.9 Provision of full range
Advertising Company joint venture Republic of China of advertising
Limited FONE B ERE PEARAME services
BB BB RERS R HEES RS
BRAF]

In 2007, the Group and the joint venture partner
entered into an agreement with an investor in which the
investor agreed to subscribe for 16.5% equity interest
in the enlarged registered capital of the associate. The
transaction was completed on 13 December 2007 and
the Group’s equity interest in the associate had been
diluted from 49.0% to 40.9%, resulting in a gain on
deemed disposal of $10,243,000 in 2007.

Loans to associate

The loans to associate are unsecured, bearing interest
ranging from 5.58% p.a. to 7.47% p.a. (2007: 6.12% p.a.
to 7.29% p.a.) and are not expected to be recovered
within one year.

The Group provided loan of RMB22,858,000 (2007:
RMB22,858,000) to the associate through a designated
deposit/loan arrangement where a subsidiary of the
Group placed a pledged deposit of RMB22,858,000
(2007: RMB22,858,000) with a bank in the PRC and
the bank provided a loan to the associate of the same
amount. The bank has no obligation to repay any
principal or interest in case of default by the associate.

Amount due from associate

The amount due from associate is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The amount
is not expected to be recovered within one year.

(b)

(c)

zk;%&éﬁ%zwﬁif%&é%ﬁfzgt
FRIL—HEHRE Bt ZREERER
e R /N %«%kézﬂHﬂMM%ZHx
o ZEXGR -_ETLFE+-_A+=H%
B - MASBEREE QB2 A 49.0% #
BE409%  RZZETLFELERELEZ
Uz 758 10,243,000 7T °

ERTFHEQT

BERTHEARAEEMN RFFE558%
BT 4T%B(ZETLF : FFE6.12%
B7.20%) W EHIER—FAEE -

AEERBERREHR-FR/RARE
22,868,000 TL( = EEALF ¢ /\Eﬁ%22858000
TORMER - ZERTVERELFRERL
BEHEH > AKERM—RHMBARR BT
Bl RIT M IR ERA R 22,858,000
T(ZFZTEF - AR¥22,858,0007T) * i
ZIRTTRIMBE A RRERRS BN -
B & A B ARER - RITU|EEEES
ARG E o

FEWEE A TRE
EWE A AR RIBAERE  2EREET
IR - %EﬁHaATAIET\QEG*iWEE °
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18 Interest in associate (continued)

(d) Summary financial information on associate

(e)

In relation to the provision of financial assistance by
the Group to the associate, the balance sheet of the
associate as at 31 December 2008 required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules is as follows:

18 REE QAT ZEE W

(d)

BENRMBERME

RAEERETFHEAANTBEED M
5 BEARR-_EENFF+_A=+—8
ARBE L TANEISEF 1322 F UK E
MEEBRBRNT :

Non-

current Current Current Net Profit for
assets assets liabilities assets  Revenues the year
FRBEE RBEE RBEE BERE 6 FREF
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T

2008 —ZENF
100 per cent BOZA 182,218 295,340 (184,927) 292,631 411,748 34,561
Group’s effective interest AEEZERER 74,554 120,838 (75,663) 119,729 168,467 14,141

2007 ZTELF
100 per cent BAZE 140,657 266,741 (163,031) 244,367 293,391 25,588
Group’s effective interest AEEZERER 57,550 109,137 (66,704) 99,983 143,761 12,538

Impairment test for cash-generating units (“CGU”)
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s associate as a
single CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a one-year
period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below.

(e) PHEBZRSEEEMWRENR

BEDRE-REEEEUIEEAEEN
NS

b MK
¢

i

o
=

T4 A 7 A R B B 9 O R M AL B
Y- pEREENRRS AR Y B
WERBEEER BRI — FHHRES
fEt - Bl — F B MBS R E RO TR b5
e 5 H T o
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18 Interest in associate (continued) 18 REE QAT 2 EE @)
(e) Impairment test for cash-generating units (“CGU”) (e) EWEBZESLEEENURENR®)
containing goodwill (continued)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: HECAEENEIEREA
%
Aok
— Average gross margin — FHERNRX 16.8
— Average growth rate — FHERER 3.0
— Discount rate — WE= 5.64
Management determined the budgeted gross margin EEERAERATEERE AT ERES
based on past performance and its expectation for TIEEEFR o FELA M INEFEHE E R ETT
market development. The weighted average growth ERMEFEHTERN —3 o T AITIRETIRE AT
rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in WRMABEEATNISETERR
industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the associate.
The recoverable amount of the goodwill is higher than BIETRAEESE  HENTWEHEBESREE
its carrying amount based on value-in-use calculations. EE- Bl EFAVERZREEIE -
Accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised
during the year.
19 Inventories 19 78
All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise and FEGEEY A RENKS  BHREEENEHE
are expected to be recovered within one year. AfE—FRIkD o
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERAYENFEEEAENT -
follows:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 3,489 3,408
Write-down of inventories & MO - 109
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRERD (204) —
3,285 3,517
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20 Amounts due from/(to) group companies

21

(a) The amount due from ultimate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of

repayment.

(b) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of settlement/

repayment.

(c) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment but
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months of

the balance sheet date.

(d) The amounts due from/(to) to a fellow subsidiary is
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and

represents normal trade receivables and payables.

Accounts receivable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

20 EW (BN EBQATFRIE

21

(a) EREKREBRARREAEER RERE
Bl e & -

() Y (EMKBARFEAERER 28
KB E 45 ERE

(c) BWIBRARARER/ERM LEREEE
BYRY EIArAENEEFR T _@ARE

d) Y (ER) —MRANBLARESELR
BB ARERKREER RFE—RE
Z W K SRR

FE s B =R

NEER - BURFH R ITHIBAOT

The Group
AEE

2008 2007
$’000 $’000
F Fr
Current or less than one month overdue ENEfsk @ B L —1{E A 17,789 15,052
One to two months overdue B —ZmEA 3,713 3,732
Two to three months overdue BHRE= 2,265 1,233
More than three months overdue EHER = 2,118 1,677
25,885 21,694

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered

within one year.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 28(a).

BHIPTA BURRAT A —F R E -
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21

22

Accounts receivable (continued)

Impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
when the recovery of the amount is remote. At 31 December
2008, the Group’s accounts receivable of $414,000 (2007:
$55,000) was determined to be impaired. The impairment
loss was written off against the accounts receivable directly.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

21 FEWERFR (&

AR B SEE SR - BZEREREERE
BE -RZZEENF+_A=+—8 A58
ZEWBER AL 414,000 T(—ESLF : B

55,000 7T ) HE AAERE - MEBE TR ER
BRERR BN o
EBHERRENEEFIAETBE TRALEE

ERUIXBLBNBYURLPEH - BREBEE
B EREREHRZEERNEEERLR
ﬁfﬁéﬁﬂﬁ“' ZEBBADTAR B 2 AU
Bl BMEFSZFERELRERE - AREL
ﬂi?ﬁi%%ﬁ%%ﬁ{ﬂﬂﬂﬁuu °

Bank deposits and cash 22 RITFRREREE
The Group The Company
rEME NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
T T T T
Cash at bank and in BITERERS
hand 50,401 43,645 507 4,561
Bank deposits with REBMBEA=EAN
original maturities BERTTE R
within three months 75,393 508,812 72,293 413,381
Cash and cash MEHRERER
equivalents for the MEWBEERRE
purpose of the cash ZEY
flow statement 125,794 552,457 72,800 417,942
Bank deposits with [REIEAE AEA
original maturities =@ ABIRITER
over three months 408,105 53,500 295,105 —
533,899 605,957 367,905 417,942
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23 Accounts payable

24

25

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

Within one month — & A R E8

WEER - BABRROREDITFBLT -

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$’000 $'000
Fx T
4,403 5,362

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
within one year.

Bank loan

At 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company has
no outstanding bank loan (2007: $38,000,000). The bank
loan in 2007 was secured by pledged bank deposit of
$38,000,000.

At 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had
total banking facilities amounting to $50,000,000 (2007:
$50,000,000).

Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet

24

25

TAHIRT A BN R AT R — F A o

RITER

RZZEZNF+_A=+—H AEBEEKARQ
AT EAEENRTER ST LF : B
38,000,0007T) e —EZELFIRITERTIUNE K
IR 1717 B 5 38,000,000 JTIEHEKIF ©

RZZTEZENF+_A=+—H KEEKAEARQF
BERTTIE B 4858 E B 50,000,000t (ZET+
& ##50,000,0007T) °
JIRNGEEEEBRZFBH

(a) FINGEEERBRZAYHES

represents:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$’000 $’000
T 7
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REFEEBNER
for the year B 3,274 6,619
Provisional Profits Tax paid [EENEZE: CkEY (6,233) (8,303)
(2,959) (1,684)
PRC income tax payable ERHPBER 551 645
(2,408) (1,039)
2008 2007
$’000 $'000
Fr F
Current tax recoverable AU [ A HA R IR (2,959) (2,315)
Current tax payable JE A~ N R AR 18 551 1,276
(2,408) (1,039)
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25 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 25 JINGEEERBRZAHEHw

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CERAELEHEEE (EF) :

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BAEEEABRANCHEIANECHEEE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the (BE)BHRRFANESHNT
movements during the year are as follows:

The Group
rEE
Depreciation

allowances in

excess of Distributable
related profits of
depreciation associate
hEERBH Tax losses A F 5k Total
HRITE REEBE BELTEA o
$’000 $’000 $'000 $’000
Fit Fi Fit Fi
At 1 January 2007 RZTTLF
—A—H (8,625) 8,537 - (88)
Credited to profit EEREAEA
or loss 4,411 1,190 — 5,601
At 31 December R_TBZT+LF
2007 +=—RA=+—H (4,214) 9,727 — 5,513
At 1 January 2008 RZZZNF
—H—H (4,214) 9,727 — 5,513
Credited/(charged) to £z AE A
profit or loss (%%%) 2,496 (3,370) (707) (1,581)
At 31 December RZZZTNF
2008 +=—B=+—~ (1,718) 6,357 (707) 3,032
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
i Fit
Net deferred tax assets recognised on the FEBAEABRANCERY
consolidated balance sheet EIERI BB E TR 6,227 9,660
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the #GFAEBEBBERANDHERL
consolidated balance sheet BEEREEEFRE (2,295) (4,047)
3,932 5,513
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17

25

26

Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of
$9,782,000 (2007: $8,394,000) in respect of tax losses
of $59,286,000 (2007: $47,966,000). The tax losses do
not expire under the current tax legislation.

Equity settled shared-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001 whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 6 June 2011.

No options were granted during the year and there were no
outstanding options at 31 December 2008 and 2007.

25

26

IRGEEERBERZMBER W

(c) UEBRBHMELERIREE !

AN & B BB 59,286,000t (ZE
+ & B 47,966,0007T ) B B 75 &5 18 HE
R 9,782,000 (=TT + F: B
8,394,000 /) MIEERI A E B - BIISEER
BRARBE AL B RB -

DUREENNRD RS

ARBRAE BB IRAET S ([%ar 8 ]) - &t dl
RZZBE-FRXALRERM - Bk - NRFWH
E=RERUNBEEFEERE(REAKET
ARABMER)TEBRERBARRAMRLD
MEREE THAEARBARR — B BRAE
Mo ZEENARBASTE R2FT——FKA
NEER -

FRLMELBRE - TR -FE\FR-FF
tETZ A=A BREAATEORR
-




118 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

G FRERM T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEETIN  9RBRFE)

27 Capital and reserves

(a) The Group

27 RERBFERE

(a) =&H

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KNARRELR
Share Share General Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
28
e KRR - EHEs Rtk HERE REEA @it KREE REEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $:000 $'000 000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
v i i v T i i T v i
At 1 January 2007 e S s
-F-A 99,737 531,769 238 (200) - 5,036 221,198 857,778 5,527 863,305
Dividends approved ~ BELEEE
in respect of the BENRE
previous year - - - - - - (30819 (30,819 - (30.819)
Exchange differences  $EEELSN
on tranglation of the ~ £REHSR
financial statements ~ HIEREE
of operations outside
Hong Kong - - - - - 7,199 - 7,799 282 8,081
Deemed disposal of  #fetEBS
partial interest in AARHESR
associate - - - - - (1,782) - (1,782) - (1,782)
Premium on additional B A TS
investment in a RERE
subsidiary - - - - (605) - - (605) - (605)
Purchase of minority ~ BAJERE
interests 5 - - - - - - - - (606) (606)
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 49,620 49,620 7,777 57,397
Dividends paid to BRTFOERER
minority interests RE - - - - - - - - (7.701) (7,701)
At 31 December 2007 R-FTLE
t-A=t-R 99,787 531,769 238 (200) (605) 11,053 239,999 881,991 5279 887,270
At 1 January 2008 RZBENE
-A-A 99,787 531,769 238 (200) (605) 11,053 239,999 881,991 5279 887,270
Dividends approved BB LEER
in respect of the HENRE
previous year - - - - - - (88,566) (88,566) - (88,566)
Exchange differences ~ HHEEEUI
ontranglation of the ~ £RE KRR
financial statements ~ HEXEE
of operations outside
Hong Kong - - - - - 6,021 - 6,021 - 6,021
Appropriation to BAE-REE
general reserve - - 601 - - - (601) - - -
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 42,615 42,615 7107 49,722
At 31 December 2008 R-FEN\E
tZA=t-R 99,787 531,769 839 (200) (605) 17,074 193,447 842,061 12,386 854,447
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27 Capital and reserves (continued) 27 BAREES@®
(b) The Company (b) &AIFH
Share Share Contributed Retained
capital premium surplus profits Total
;&N R 13 5 (8 BERE% REEA wct
$’000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $’000
T Tt FT FT T
At 1 January 2007 R-ZE4E
—H—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 83,854 777,995
Dividends approved
in respect of the HABELFEERD
previous year L300 N — — — (30,819) (30,819)
Profit for the year FEREF — — — 55,464 55,464
At 31 December R_ETLF
2007 +-—A=+—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 108,499 802,640
At 1 January 2008 R -ZZTN\F
—HA—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 108,499 802,640
Dividends approved
in respect of the HABELFEED
previous year &R IR S — — — (88,566) (88,566)
Profit for the year FREF — — — 38,183 38,183
At 31 December RZTTNE
2008 +-A=+—H 99,737 531,769 62,635 58,116 752,257
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27 Capital and reserves (continued) 27 BARBEES
(c) Share capital (c) B=&
2008 2007
Number Number
of shares of shares
BHEHE R 1n 288
‘000 $°000 ‘000 $’000
FB T F &% FT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of FREKO1TTH
$0.1 each B 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully ERTRBE :
paid:
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERRFHAEAGRKBARERNRE - WH#

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled RARF]
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. FARE AR
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) f&#E
(i) Share premium (i)

The application of the share premium account
is governed by sections 150 and 157 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(ii) General reserve (ii)

General reserve is provided by each of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries at 10% of their net profit after tax,
based on the subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial
statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up
capital of the respective subsidiary.

RELBRE-BEROK-—FR-EY
ARENHBEEMS IZAREFES -

SHHEERAR
B EE

B RERNERANIARRMEEER
MANE150 R 157 (R RBERE— LN~
FCRREEVFTIEMR »

—RiEE
REBZTEMBELRGERENER
AN P EDEEM MR EN 2 FRB
&IFUWAEI10% A — AR -

—REEAREBETARTERNE
BIESHBARNBETER -
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27 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Contributed surplus

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange under the reorganisation in 2001
was transferred to contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
is available for distribution to shareholders.

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction
and the premium was recognised directly in the
shareholders’ equity.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $120,751,000 (2007:
$171,134,000).

(vii) Included in the Group’s retained profits is an

amount of $62,848,000 (2007: $48,707,000), being
retained profits attributable to associate.

27 BAREES @
d) mESHNEERAR®)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

EHER

RE-ZTT-FHNEEBHE  ARAK
RAEENZERAR - GFAEEFER
HIEMBRHEEBLARFE-ZE
—FRBEEATEER MM BEITHORN
HE  ZERABEBABEHAR - RIE
BRE-NN-FRBVEHRE - BH
BERTRE TR -

Bt f#

REBRZZETSLFH-—REAWNBEA
BIE R —AWZE - AB% 1,211,000 7T
2 B U BE H R T B A B1KM-Vision
Limited F 84 2 8% KIBGHE - FTE £ H (B
7B 605,0007T © BLEEIMNEE TH AR
BRPHE  BEEERREESPE

ERFE

INEREBRIEME LIBE BN R
BHRENER 28 - X THBRTER
MEEE1 () ST EURER o

@ HY I 2T’

W-BBENE+=B=+—0 TH
ETARARBRENFEHEBEABLE
120,751,000c(Z T T £ F: B
171,134,000 7T) ©

(vi) AEBZ REBNABIEEERE QA

REEFB 62,848,000 ( —EE+
& 1 B 48,707,0007T) °
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27 Capital and reserves (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any
bank borrowings (2007: $38,000,000). The gearing
ratio, representing the ratio of bank borrowings to the
total share capital and reserves of the Group was 4.3%
at 31 December 2007. The Group had bank deposits
and cash balance as at 31 December 2008 amounting
to $533,899,000 (2007: $643,957,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

28 Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from in the normal course of its
business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables. The Group
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

27 BARBEES
(e) BEXERE

FEEERER s ERZRBENRIEREEEE
MBS BRSNS - EMEBERERK
FHRYEZEMEREEE  UARESAE
FRARFLE - AR IR 2 o I R EL A
e BrHE Rt -

RZZEENF+Z_A=Z+—H £5%5H
WEEMBOTEE(ZESEF: B
38,000,00070) c AFEER-_TZTLF+=
A=+—BZ2EABELEERITHERER
EERARBERENLE)RA4.3% A&
BR-_ZEZENF+_A=1+—HZRITEXK
NI & 4 6 B B 533,809,000 L (=& =
F B 643,957,000 7T) ©

AEEBERETHEEEARBRAR R
B UERSRRERER T EFE2
BeBEKTERIFHERNKAT R ESD
RARPE 2 BEUS T4 - A EEBEIRENE
(L EREEIEL AR -

28 £RIT A
AEBEMNHEEBBRESEAEE  RPES -
FEREERR ZERRIZ TAAEBEMBE
B R B HIRRH -

(a) EERR

AEBNEERREERBEURERREM
JEWIRR - AEERA-—HEEREK  1TE
FEEEELEERR
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or
are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk in respect of accounts receivable and other
receivables relating to media sales business and
merchandising business customers, as the five largest
customers combined did not exceed 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail
to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of the respective assets in
the balance sheet. The Group has not provided any
guarantee which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

28 @ T A

(a)

(b)

FEERE(#)

K%E%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%?éﬁﬁfmgﬁ
EITEBEENE -  AEE KRG TER
E%%mgﬁ%Eﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬁ
MWEFRIZASE RN AL —RELS T30=90
BNEESRTRER - ARE-—RIERE
P U R

HREREFEREAREEERSEFER
30% R EHRBHEXHLAMBEER
i%@)fZJEWﬁEﬂ&ﬁ@)EH&EEﬁA RN
SEYBEBBEBREFEERR

RITFERRAERITHRE —REFHNEE
FRESRER SR AEB R RIRT - &R
HESFARS  BEEL AT MAFFE
RITEBEBITHEES -

EeEERBRREEABERABBEENKR
HERT - AEBETBEH-EMATESRE
ERA QA HEREERRAER

AEBETESBCEEEEEHEAFZES
B BRELSEFUMZEHNRSSE
ko ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ HERMSE TETEK
FoRBESARREZEMHE  c AEH
mﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi'uﬁ%
HEBAMNASREEREZZSmHEER
BRANAFKELEE  REEREHOR
BESFRK -
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of
its subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries
are required to obtain the Company’s approval for
activities such as investment of surplus cash, raising
of loans and settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond
certain limits.

The remaining contractual maturities at the balance
sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are required to be
repaid within one year or on demand amounted to
$37,426,000 (2007: $102,116,000) and $230,299,000
(2007: $234,908,000) respectively.

Interest rate risk

Bank deposits and bank loan of the Group and the
Company bear interests at floating rates and are the
major financial instruments which subject the Group
and the Company to interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company
have bank deposits of $510,474,000 (2007:
$619,227,000) and $367,663,000 (2007: $595,888,000)
which bear interests at interest rates ranging from
0.01% p.a. to 3.78% p.a. (2007: 2.70% p.a. to 4.95%
p.a.) and from 0.01% p.a. to 3.54% (2007: 2.70% p.a.
to 4.95% p.a.) respectively, and the maturity dates of
these bank deposits are within one year.

At 31 December 2007, the bank loan of the Group and
the Company bore interest at 0.25% p.a. over the bank
deposits rate.

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits by approximately $5,626,000 (2007:
$6,723,000).

28 €@ T Am

(b)

(c)

REES R (5)

ARABNETUVEREMBRANRER
B —RME ARAANKERRARAR
SRRERE  BEERNBFHBBET L
REEENERFEPBISE QR

AEER AEBERNFSBANIHERER
ZK‘EE’HWE%@EE{E(LEEA FRHR
EoREFEE) fﬁ%ﬁ o Bl & 7 ¥ 37,426,000
T(ZEZEEF: B #¥102,116,0007T ) &
75 %230,299,000%(: TETLF B
234,908,000 L) °

RS

REBEARRBNRITERLBITERAT
P KRR - TRRNEEEAZ R @A
FESHMIAER -

RZZEENF+ZA=+—H A5£EK
QA 2 RAITE R R B 510,474,000 7T
(ZZ2 T+ F: #%619,227,000L ) &
7% #367,663,000 L(Z T T £ F: H K
595,888,000 7T ) 7 B #Z & F F 7 % 0.01%
E23.78%(Z T T+ F 1 2.70%%4.95%)
F0.01%E354% (— T L4 :2.70% &
4.95%)5F B - RS ROTFERMEEE A —
FRA o

RZEZ+F+-A=Z+—8 AEEERK
AEIMRITE FURBITE RF R NF F| =
0.25% 5T &

RZZEENF+-_A=+—8 BEHA KL
WA, M 100 AR - REBFAELME
BHBTE  AEBREAFENRTRRE
B IR 4% # 5,626,000 7T (=
TTAF ¢ B#6,723,0007T) °
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28 Financial instruments (continued) 28 €@ T A
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FIEmEBS(#)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined Fll BB I ERBREFEE LB RS

(d)

assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

Currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

(d)

HFHELE YERRBEARERSFEZIHE

TESBITANFIXERE - STEER -
TEFHER -
E¥ERE

NRFAEE N AR R FHERAFERFD
REBREMIEMEERABREERMR
ARFENEERR

2008 2007
usD RMB UshD RMB
£ AR e AR
’000 ’000 000 000
Fi Fi Fir Tt
The Group REE
Bank deposits and RITERERE
cash 47,140 - 54,016 —
Amount due from JE W Bt 2 A 7
associate HIE 1,428 — 1,061 —
Loans to associate mEEE R ER 9,017 22,858 9,017 22,858
57,585 22,858 64,094 22,858
The Company P NN
Bank deposits and RITEFRRR S
cash 46,724 - 53,042 —
In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk hoh  REEEHUARBGEER TR ERT
arising from inter-company receivables denominated B TheE B ) 51 BR 69 & R JE UK BR R OPT E AR 9 A1
in Renminbi which is not the functional currency of the KR RN _ZTN\E+_A=1+—H ZEFA

lender or the borrower. Such inter-company receivables
amounted to RMB124,971,000 as at 31 December 2008
(2007: RMB121,066,000).

A) fal

+F

JEUWR R TEE AR 124,971,000 T(—Z 2=
AER#121,066,0007T) °
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28 Financial instruments (continued) 28

(d) Currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates that how an increase in
the following currency against Hong Kong dollars at the

ERmIA®

(d)y EMEERE

TRERR

Py

In=E2

BATE®ELBETERNIE

AT BENARBEARFEERMME MR

balance sheet date would have increased the Group’s HBD ©
profit for the year and other components of equity.
2008 2007
Effect on Effect on
Increase profit for Effect on Increase profit for Effect on
in foreign the year other in foreign the year other
exchange and retained components exchange and retained  components
rate profits of equity rate profits of equity
HER HER
MEEEH BNRRE HEMER INEEEH BFIRRE HHEMER
#m ERmEE Bonmge #m Bfingy 2 Pamye
$000 $000 $:000 $:000
T T Fr Fr
The Group b8 |
Renminbi ARE 3% 4,236 775 3% 3,885 731

A weakening in the above currency against Hong Kong
dollars by the same percentage at the balance sheet
date would have had an equal but opposite effect on
the Group’s profit for the year and other components of
equity.

i L s 55 38 T O B R

REERANRBERB D

TR RIS AR EEEFERNMA DD
TRAFERROFTE -
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

This sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the
United States dollar against other currencies. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in their
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date for presentation purposes. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis as for 2007.

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
currencies.

Fair values

No disclosure of fair value is required as all the
Group’s financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2008 and 2007.

28 @ T A
(d) E¥EEE)

(e)

FRUEDPTIRBVEZTHLCLEREERH
£ YERARENFEAREMBINZEN
BIA MiEIASCAKERGEEAIEY
SMNERRR - BEEERAARMBMAERTHE
R E R LA 2 ERETIE 2 B gk
R AR REEMERLERNE) #5
T gUME  AEERKETLEME
BEBNEAZFE TS LB TR TR
BRERELEATE - LRAVDTHERE
HAKEEERBNFANENGEERHEZ
MEBNEESNEATE  YOREREA
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29 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of fixed
assets not provided for in the financial statements:

Authorised but not contracted for SHEBMARETENE

29 RiE

(a)

BRAEE

RN_ZZN\F+_A=+—8 XEEFT
5 B B B E B E A B R B AR E I R B
TSR AR B

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr T
173,000 173,000

(b) Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of property and equipment are payable as

(b)

A EAE
R-ZZENE+-_A=+—8 AEBEIRE
ERAMEREBEZ TG HECEHERMNDN
FERSRERSEBEOT ¢

follows:
2008 2007
$’000 $°000
Tt T
Within 1 year —FR 1,659 603
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNA 2,430 63
4,089 666

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
6 months to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not
include any contingent rentals.

(c) Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to conduct media sales
management services for MMOB business for a term up
to 2012 have been granted to the Group. Under such
licences, the Group has committed to pay royalty fees
at a pre-determined percentage of the net advertising
rental received.

(c)

AEERBELLEHEHRAMENERE - HE
NERBAEAZRF  XAREFEDE
BEFRED - HETRETARAES -

Hi A

AEEERET AR S RBRIRMKR
HETERRENETE  ERAE_F——
F oo RIBZFRTIE - NEE D AGERIEATIK
BMESHESFE K EREEENED
X HAE -
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30 Employee retirement benefits 30 EEEKRER

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme AEBREBEEBCRFIMAB ST EGH)ARE
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory REB(EBEIDMNEFNESRZARGER
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees BeitgEl((aEastdll)  RESFTERTEE
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong MPCRAREE - BBV EERBEEIE - BRIBARE
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined TF B EXHEEEEHAELHRENEESH
contribution retirement plan administered by independent WAB% MR - M AFEKRAN LR AEE
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its 20,0007t ° T EIHR VBN RS -

employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group BEPBVER  AEELEBEEAQAMNBA
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the AR BT EMROES RN E - AEE®
local governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries FHEIFHBIT ¢
are governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as
follows:
Contribution rate
R E

Administrator Note Beneficiary
BFEA Bt ZHA 2008 2007
Shanghai Social Security Fund Management Center (i) Employees 22% 22%
LMt eRBRESEEFR L (=]
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Center (ii) Employees 20% 20%
IRt ERBRESEEFRL [=3=]
Notes: Bisx -
(i)  Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required () REZE ASESREESHSHAEEBESRE

to make a contribution to the scheme at 22% and 8% respectively EHBWA22% K 8% MR -

of the employees’ relevant income.
(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required (i) WREFEZEE - AEBBREEEHRBELBAENE

to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8% of a pre- SEETERE20% K 8% FIEER ©

determined amount.
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31 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the
following related party transactions during the year:

31 EEEATHNEARRS
BAMBHRXEMBOMBRENR S RER

G AEBERFREUNTEREALORS

Income/(expenses)
WA (BX)
2008 2007
Note $’000 $'000
M % T Tt
Management and administration fee EERITHEBRA
income (i) 15,619 15,164
Licence fee for conducting MMOB ME I EEREHTE
business (ii) (18,324) (7,083)
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right $#HERFHHFEE=
to sell advertising space on transit BEMSHFRERB
vehicle shelters (iii) (10,577) (8,035)
Rental expenses HEEA (iv) (1,134) (990)
Management fee expenses EEBRY (v) (14,144) (12,495)
Guaranteed advertising income REFEEEWA (vi) 9,785 11,867
Service fee paid for logistic function REDRBEZNREE (vii) (490) (490)
Key management personnel remuneration FZ&1E A 8¢ (viii) (8,814) (5,987)
Interest income from associate R EHEE R RAF BUA (ix) 4,999 3,735
Notes: B3

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Fee income was earned for the provision of media sales
management and administrative services to a subsidiary of TIH, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The amount receivable by
the Group at the year end amounted to $1,334,000 (2007: $Nil).

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for conducting MMOB
advertising on buses fitted with MMOB broadcasting system.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$5,574,000 (2007: $7,083,000).

Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces
on certain transit vehicle shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$501,000 (2007: $4,062,000).

Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
properties, computer equipment and software system, furniture
and fixtures. The amount payable by the Group at the year end
amounted to $Nil (2007: $Nil).

Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Texon Limited (“JCDecaux
Texon”), a fellow subsidiary of a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, for the provision of media sales
agency services in relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to
JCDecaux Texon at the year end amounted to $3,831,000 (2007:
$4,362,000).

(if)

(iil)

ERBAREARAREZEZRESHEN —HHBEA
AR ERBIHEEE RITBRBAEHKA - RE
R NG E U B8 BB R 1,334,000 (=%
TLF BB TL) -

BFHEREANELIROZEBERERFETRY
ZEBEESANTFHE HMNBERARNER - RE
K AEEEMNOREREES5574,000T(=ZF
T4 B#¥7,083,0007T) °

B RERERIERHEESR B HHBARAES
NWETEESHRETESUINNER - NF
K AEBEENHREABE501,000L(Z2F
+ & B 4,062,0007T) °

(iv) AEBEREEME SHEBREERR  BHAR
KEZAHFBN —FMBRARXNEEER - R4F
K AKERNOFALBETL(ZFTLF :
BEET) -

(v AEEMREFRECHREFFEHEREREN

JCDecaux Texon Limited ([ JCDecaux Texon]) %
NERE  ZARRADQNANERRZDHAER
B RMERE - RFER - I T ICDecaux Texon
B IE BB %3,831,000(Z T+ F: B
4,362,0007T) °
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii

(ix)

31 Material related party transactions (continued) 31 BREALTHNERRS ®
Notes: (continued) MIsE : ()
The Group entered into a contract with JCDecaux Texon for media (vi) AN % B 3t JCDecaux TexoniEft A B E L% &
sales agency services provided to the Group in relation to the SEEHEEXKBEE THHEEHERERKEHA
bus shelters under the media sales business. The Group shall be JCDecaux Texonzl] & [ o 75 B A REWEUR &
entitled to a guaranteed income calculated based on the rates WA SEDNRSESRNKBHRELTREZE
per panel and the number of bus shelter panels. JCDecaux Texon ERNHEEMET - MEREBELEE=ZNER
shall pay any shortfall if the actual income derived from the bus WAL RRFBUWA - ZFEZEH JCDecaux Texon ¥
shelters is less than the guaranteed income. The amount due from o REF R FEUICDecaux Texon ) I8 A7
JCDecaux Texon at the year end amounted to $751,000 (2007: #751,000 L(ZF T L F : EN B 4,410,000
amount due to of $4,410,000). JT) °
The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Texon for the logistic (vii) ZAEEHL JCDecaux TexoniEEAME HRE =1
function provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under BHEXEEE TH%ZARTSM JCDecaux Texon
the media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Texon at SRHRBEE - RFER - A FJICDecaux Texon
the year end amounted to $204,000 (2007: $204,000). B 5K IE B S B204,000t(Z T £ F: B
204,0007T) °
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts (vii) FZEBRAENME(BENF7ARESIN TR
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain NEEENMEMHESHFEINTFTETRSH
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: SRENKE)MT
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Short-term employee benefits R EER 8,770 5,947
Post-employment benefits BEREE T 44 40
8,814 5,987
The loans to associate are unsecured, bearing interest ranging (ix) M= RARRM ERAEER - LFEFE5.58%
from 5.58% p.a. to 7.47% p.a. (2007: 6.12% p.a. to 7.29% p.a.) BE747T% (ZZTT+F: FHEE6.12%Z7.29%)
and due within one year. The interest receivable at the year end PR WR—FARE - RER - BREIOFER
amounted to HK$11,059,000 (2007: $8,896,000). 511,059,000 70 (= B E +4F : 751 8,896,000
7T e
Immediate and ultimate controlling party 32 HERBKEZERARA

32

At 31 December 2008, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to
be KMB Resources Limited and Transport International
Holdings Limited respectively. KMB Resources Limited is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands while Transport
International Holdings Limited is incorporated in Bermuda
and listed in Hong Kong. Transport International Holdings
Limited produces financial statements available for public

use.

RZZZENF+-A=Z+—H8 EEREALAE
ENEEIARREERITERAA DB AKMB
Resources Limited R & BEIFRIERBR AT ©
KMB Resources Limited 7 % & iz Z #f & 5 it Ak
o mEREBRIERAERA AR B FEZMK
Y RREBLET - HABEBRIERER AR &HERH
BRMEAMABRALTEHE -
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G RERMTE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(MR RBHERI - HRBEHE)

33 Accounting estimates and judgements

Note 15 contains information about the assumptions and
risk factors relating to goodwill impairment. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation

Audio and visual equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Company reviews annually the useful life of an asset.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance sheet
date to identify indications that they may be impaired.
Such indications include physical damage of a
fixed asset and a decrease in the revenue derived
from a fixed asset. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the fixed asset is estimated.
The recoverable amount of a fixed asset is based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on reasonable assumptions that
represent management’s best estimate of the range of
economic conditions over the remaining useful life of
the asset.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting for the
inability of the debtors to make required payments. The
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the
ageing of the accounts receivable balance and debtors’
credit-worthiness. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness of each individual customer and the
collectibility of each accounts receivable balance. Any
increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts would affect the result in future
years.

33 ERFfhET R

M 1sHMEERmBRENRRLRERESR - )
TREMTEE[THEZARIR

(a)

(b)

(c)

e

FERBIEREGAIERFHNERE
AEWE - ARFEBFRANEENAERE
Hi o @A ART EAE RS - BIRIRERE
MITERS SEHAE -

BEEERME

AEBENGEAERTGHEEEERSDRE
DR - ZENREEETEENELERER
EEEEMELENWERD - EFEEMLL
SRETR - ARESEFEEEENATR
Bl #%R - Bl & & AT I B iR b (B (E
HE - REHEERNEREEYZEAENEE
BRI REBFAENEERR - Wik
TRERFHETREREE

FEW AR R OR B

A B b B AR BB PR FOR M 5 B
BB REFRERBENRESE - N&
B R 1% M A AR O BR i R AB SR A BB B 2R A
AAREKRER  EERFGEBTEILEFNGE
BRERREPAITREMEREFEL —EREE
BT o RIRBRBE B R A 38R AT AL
HERRBFNEE -
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34 Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 10.

One of the joint venture partners agreed to subscribe for an
additional 16.8% equity interest in the enlarged registered
capital of the associate of the Group. Upon the completion
of the transaction, the Group’s equity interest in the
associate will be diluted from 40.9% to 32.7%.

35 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2008 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

HKAS 1 (Revised)
BEBGFERE 15 (KEET) BigHKk 275
HKAS 23 (Revised)

B ERIE 23 5% (£ 157])

Borrowing Costs

fEERA

HKFRS 8
BB BAERE 85

Operating Segments
ey

Presentation of Financial Statements

34 FABEHEHEREER

HEARERESRERBRE - sFBRME
10@&&%0
Hbh—fAEBHRAEBIIREREERLE QA

BIMABREMEARN16.8%HE R FTK
% RNREERBEQTNRERS 40.9%#EE
32.7% °

35 ERMERRBE-ZEENF+_A=1T—
At FEEMMNENEE - EARZET
BERNTE
BEAPBHETER  BESAMASERMG
ZENBE_TENF+_A=+—HALFED
REBHEEET - TR R RE - MAH B ®
RIBRNZEER] ~ LR R -

AEBEIEFEZEFENBET MBI RFRER
BRERRNZE  FEMAL  AEERRKE
MZBEEAER] RN EBYARENE
BRENMBRABREAZEOATEEMETK -

S - NFIMEET AT B S BRI AR B I SRR AR

WIS HE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
REFTHBEERNER
HE(BEER)

1 January 2009
—ETNF—HA—H

1 January 2009
—ZEENFE—A—H

1 January 2009
—ETNF—HA—H
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HFHHEHE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T BT T BT T
RESULTS ¥
Turnover = 148,412 134,268 176,485 191,105 181,965
Gain on disposal of media
assets HERBEERS - — 44,043 — —
Other revenue and other N NN
net income F R 35,560 47,090 37,8583 21,583 16,095
Total revenue LONL | 183,972 181,358 258,381 212,688 198,060
Profit from operations B H| 42,943 38,325 44,309 22,693 18,718
Finance costs %2R (300) (1,706) (1,631) (2,385) (1,348)
Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries HERE AT - - 12,677 — —
Gain on deemed disposal
of partial interest in RIELEBE QRS
associate e e - 10,243 — — —
Share of profit of associate JE{5H 2 A 7] &5 14,141 12,538 6,387 12,129 9,454
Profit before taxation BREE AT E R 56,784 59,400 61,742 32,437 26,824
Income tax Frig %t (7,062) (2,008) (7,353) (6,267) (3,083)
Profit for the year EEERF 49,722 57,397 54,389 27,170 28,771
Attributable to: EMET -
Equity shareholders of
the Company NN 323 42,615 49,620 30,781 26,270 20,114
Minority interests DEREE R 7,107 7,777 23,608 900 3,657
Profit for the year KEEREF 49,722 57,397 54,389 27,170 23,771
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At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT BT T BT T
ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES EERERE
Fixed assets BElE B E 11,855 25,868 51,424 85,315 112,552
Media assets HEEEE 778 1,122 1,408 95,805 114,722
Goodwill [EES - — — 12,487 12,487
Non-current prepayments JERBN TR A 28,741 38,322 47,902 62,610 106,343
Interest in associate AN 256,926 232,623 176,839 144,388 111,271
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 6,227 9,560 8,449 7,076 7,214
Net current assets MEEEFE 552,215 583,822 585,820 484,281 425,727
Total assets less current
liabilities EELERRSDAE 856,742 891,317 871,842 891,962 890,316
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (2,295) (4,047) (8,537) (13,571) (14,806)
Other unsecured loan HEmEmER - — — (15,423) (21,123)
Net Assets AEFE 854,447 887,270 863,305 862,968 854,387
Capital and reserves EXRFEES
Share capital &N 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves EEe 742,324 782,254 758,041 742,995 727,017
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of RRBRRIEG S
the Company Fak 842,061 881,991 857,778 842,732 826,754
Minority interests DEHRR RS 12,386 5,279 5,627 20,236 27,633
Total Equity A 854,447 887,270 863,305 862,968 854,387
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“Board” The Board of Directors of RoadShow

[EFg] BAAEEY

“China” The People’s Republic of China

[ REE AR LA

“Directors” The Directors of the Company

== AN =23

“EBITDA” Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation expenses
[EBITDA] MERAE -~ B FrEREHEERANAE

“Greater China”

China PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

[RAE | hEIAREE - B RFAKAE
“HKICPA” The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

[EREHBAR

EERHALE

“HK$” and “HK cents”
[ & ]

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B RABI - BB EEES

“KMB” The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, a subsidiary of TIH

[hE] NEELT (—NA==) ARAR - HBZHBAA

“Listing Rules” The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
[ il BT EREH LA A

“MMOB” Multi-media On-board

[RE %5

EIES Y

“PRC” China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
[FEE ARHFE ] FE - TNEEEE  RFIRAE

“RmMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

[AR# ] ARY - pEEFEEH

“RoadShow” or the “Company”
[Ba@] 3 [ARRF ]

RoadShow Holdings Limited
P EURIERA R A A

“RoadShow Group” or the “Group”
[BRAmERE] st [A&RE]

RoadShow Holdings Limited together with its subsidiaries
BEABIZERARA R RENERA

“Stock Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B A2 FAT BERBMAERGERLDA
“TIH” Transport International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda in August
[ ] 1997 and whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange

HBERZERARIR  —ANEFNARBREZMRZINAR - BB HFRE R LT
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Board of Directors E£<&

John CHAN Cho Chak - Chairman
REZRNTHLT - £EF

GBS, JR DBA (Hon), BA,

DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

YUNG Wing Chung - Deputy Chairman
AKX - BIFEE

Winnie NG - Deputy Chairman
e - FlF/E
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard)

Alex MO Tik Sang - Managing Director
ElE - BEFRRLE

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
IRFRE K Pt

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FBCS,
CITR, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

HUI Ki On*
FERR
GBS, CBE, QPM, CPM

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
FREB LR Tt

GBS, OBE, JR, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA
(Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
RCRBEARFaLr
JP

John Anthony MILLER
HEg

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London)

Edmond HO Tat Man
fAlE X
MA (Cantab), MBA, CMILT, MHKIoD

Anthony NG
fhokiZ
BA, MBA (Ivey)

MAK Chun Keung
-3t

* Independent Non-Executive Director
*EIUFRITES

Company Secretary 2 F#E

Jo MAN Miu Sheung
X 1E
ACA, CPA, ACIS, ACS

Registrars iR EZfE

Hong Kong & &

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712 -1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

BERERRELELERAA]

BB/ ARNER1835%

BB OTEI7T12-1716E

Bermuda B&E

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda)
Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

Register of Members B %1

Book closed from 7 May 2009 to

13 May 2009 (both dates inclusive)
RpBFPERERAZEZEANFAAL
BEZZZAFHA+T=H (BEMX
BEEA)

Annual General Meeting
BRRBFRS

Date & Time: 13 May 2009,
11:30 a.m.

Venue: Concord Room |, 8/F

Renaissance Harbour View Hotel,

Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
FERKHE: ZZTAFRAA+T=AR

FFt+—K=+t5
E: BEEFBEE R

ERERERBENEESE—

Dividends & &

Interim: Nil

Final (Proposed): HK5.00 cents per
share

HRER

RHER () - SRB5.0010

Registered Office &Mt =&

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Principal Office ##=&E

9 Po Lun Street

Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BBENEZHRABRENGS
Telephone &3 : (852) 2746 5200
Facsimile 52 :(852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors ¥ g0

KPMG

8/F, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
EEBSTMEL
BERPREITEI0R AT AESE
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TYPESETTING AND PRINTING: ELEGANCE FINANCE PRINTING SERVICES LIMITED

© Mixed Sources
Product group from well-managed
forests, controlled sources and
recycled wood o fiber

FSC www.fsc.org Cert no. SGS-COC-2116
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council

This Annual Report is also available on our website ZN 4 3R R Al £ N2 &) 2 B B A8uE T &
www.roadshow.com.hk

DESIGN: THE GRAPHIS COMPANY LIMITED
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